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This document supplements, and should be readnijurction with, the prospectus of Highwoods Prapsrtinc. dated May 4, 20(
On May 10, 2007, we filed with the Securities anatliange Commission our Quarterly Report on FornQlf@r the quarterly period end
March 31, 2007. This Quarterly Report (excluding tixhibits thereto) is attached as Annex A to Bugpplement No. 1. Unless otherw
defined in this Supplement No. 1, capitalized teussd in this supplement have the same meaninggt &srth in the prospectus.
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PART | - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We refer to (1) Highwoods Properties, Inc. as tl@orhpany,” (2) Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerstdp the Operating
Partnership,” (3) the Company’s common stock asni@on Stock,” (4) the Company’s preferred stock Bseferred Stock,” %) the
Operating Partnership’s common partnership intsrast*“Common Units,” (6) the Operating Partnershjpreferred partnership interest:
“Preferred Units” and (7) iservice properties (excluding rental residentiata)rto which the Company and/or the OperatingriRaghip hav
titte and 100.0% ownership rights as the “Wholly @&d Properties.”

The information furnished in the accompanying Cdidated Financial Statements reflect all adjustrad¢obnsisting of normal recurri
accruals) that are, in our opinion, necessary fairgresentation of the aforementioned finanstatements for the interim period.

The aforementioned financial statements should ded rin conjunction with the notes to Consolidatddafcial Statemen
Managemens Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionl &esults of Operations and Risk Factors include@ih and in our 20(
Annual Report on Form 10-K.



HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Unaudited and in thousands, except share anchpee amounts)

March 31, December 31,
2007 2006
Assets:
Real estate assets, at ct
Land $ 350,24 $ 345,54¢
Buildings and tenant improvemet 2,615,83I 2,573,03
Development in proce: 108,07- 101,89¢
Land held for development 108,84 111,98¢
3,182,99 3,132,46'
Less-accumulated depreciation (609,149 (588,30)
Net real estate assets 2,573,84. 2,544,16!
Real estate and other assets, net, held fol 5,51¢ 34,94«
Cash and cash equivalel 17,00¢ 16,69(
Restricted cas 1,692 2,027
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,011 $h@53, respectivel 24,83( 23,347
Notes receivable, net of allowance of $780 and $7&pectively 7,29t 7,871
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwalloce of $749 and $301,
respectively 69,92( 68,36¢
Investment in unconsolidated affiliat 61,76: 60,35¢
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdated amortizatiol 68,88t 66,35:
Prepaid expenses and other assets 19,95; 20,73¢
Total Assets $ 2,850,70- $ 2,844 85:
Liabilities, Minority Interest and Stockholders' Eq uity:
Mortgages and notes payal $ 1,487,50' $ 1,465,12!
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitied 139,85¢ 156,73
Financing obligations 35,52¢ 35,53(
Total Liabilities 1,662,89 1,657,391
Commitments and Contingencies (see Note
Minority interest 70,36¢ 79,72¢

Stockholders' Equity
Preferred Stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 awtbdrshares

8 5/8% Series A Cumulative Redeemable PreferredeSHhquidation

preference $1,000 per share), 104,945 shares issukdutstanding at

March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2 104,94! 104,94!

8% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred SKayaslation

preference $25 per share), 3,700,000 shares issubedutstanding at

March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2 92,50( 92,50(
Common stock, $.01 par value, 200,000,000 authdshares

56,710,660 and 56,211,148 shares issued and oditsgeat

March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respect 567 562
Additional paic-in capital 1,435,67 1,449,33
Distributions in excess of net earnir (514,879 (538,099
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,379 (1,515

Total Stockholders' Equity 1,117,43 1,107,73.
Total Liabilities, Minority Interest and Stockhold&Equity $ 2,850,70. $ 2,844,85:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income
(Unaudited and in thousands, except per share asjoun

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006
Rental and other revenues $ 108,74. $ 101,07¢
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expen 39,13 36,11%
Depreciation and amortizatic 29,74 27,64«
General and administrative 10,91: 8,69:
Total operating expenses 79,78¢ 72,45
Interest expenses
Contractua 22,68¢ 23,81(
Amortization of deferred financing cos 56€ 744
Financing obligations 992 942
24,24 25,49¢
Other income:
Interest and other income 1,51¢ 1,977
1,51¢ 1,977
Income before disposition of property, insurance ga, minority interest and
equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 6,221 5,107
Gains on disposition of property, r 16,74: 4,31(
Gain from property insurance settlem 4,12¢ —
Minority interest (2,629 (53%)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 9,717 2,08:
Income from continuing operations 34,18¢ 10,96¢
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations, net of miryoriterest 11C 1,42t
Gains on sales of discontinued operations, netindrity interest 18,26 1,75¢
18,37: 3,181
Net income 52,55¢ 14,14¢
Dividends on preferred stor (4,117 (4,729
Excess of preferred stock redemption cost oveyiayivalue — (1,809)
Net income available for common stockholders $ 48,44t $ 7,61¢
Net income per common share - basic:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 05: % 0.0¢
Income from discontinued operations 0.3 0.0¢
Net income $ 0.8¢ $ 0.14
Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic 56,04( 53,81¢
Net income per common share diluted:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 05: $ 0.0¢
Income from discontinued operations 0.32 0.0¢
Net income $ 0.8t $ 0.14
Weighted average common shares outstanding - dilute 61,90( 60,58¢
Dividends declared per common share $ 042t $ 0.42¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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Balance at December 31, 2006

Cumulative effect adjustment
resulting from the adoption of
FASB Interpretation No. 48

Issuance of Common Stock
Common Stock dividends
Preferred Stock dividends

Adjustment to minority interest
of unitholders in the
Operating Partnership

Issuance of restricted stock, 1

Amortization of restricted stock
and stock option

Other comprehensive income
Net income

Balance at March 31,
2007

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2007
(Unaudited and in thousands, except share amounts)

Accumulated

Number of Additional Other Distributions
Common Common Series A Series B Paid-In Compre- in Excess of
Shares Stock Preferred Preferred Capital hensive Loss Net Earnings Total
56,211,14 $ 562 $ 104,94! $ 92,500 $ 1,449,33 $ (1,515 % (538,099 $ 1,107,73.
- - - - - - (1,429 (1,429
431,62 4 - - 984 - - 98¢
- - - - - - (23,807) (23,807)
- - - - - - (4,119 (4,119
- - - - (15,779 - - (15,779
67,88t - - - - - - -
- 1 - - 1,131 - - 1,132
- - - - - 14z - 14z
- - - - - - 52,55¢ 52,55¢
56,710,66 $ 567 $ 104,94! $ 92,50( $ 1,435,67' $ (1,375 % (514,874 $ 1,117,43!

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited and in thousands)

Operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Amortization of lease incentive
Amortization of restricted stock and stock optit
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Amortization of accumulated other comprehensive
Gains on disposition of propet
Gain from property insurance settlem
Minority interest
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia
Change in financing obligatiot
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &fits
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accrued straigt-line rents receivabl
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiedbil
Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities:
Additions to real estate assets and deferred lg&sists
Proceeds from disposition of real estate as
Proceeds from property insurance settlen
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated atties
Net repayments in notes receiva
Contributions to unconsolidated affiliat
Cash assumed upon consolidation of unconsoliddfitidte
Other investing activities
Net cash provided by investing activities
Financing activities:
Distributions paid on Common Stock and Common L
Redemption of Preferred Sto
Dividends paid on Preferred Sto
Distributions of earnings to minority partner innsolidated affiliate
Net proceeds from the sale of Common Si
Repurchase of Common Un
Borrowings on revolving credit facilit
Repayments of revolving credit facili
Borrowings on mortgages and notes pay:
Repayments of mortgages and notes pay

Contributions from minority interest partr
Additions to deferred financing costs and otheafficing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gberio

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006
$ 52,55¢ $ 14,14¢
29,74¢ 28,75(
22z 163
1,132 84t
56€ 744
142 177
(36,48¢) (6,209
(4,129 -
4,11¢ 81F
(9,717 (2,087)
Q) 12¢
1,96: 2,35¢
(1,057 2,35¢
22¢ 124
(1,572 (2,527)
(11,96%) 84
25,74« 39,88(
(66,27%) (34,787
65,02¢ 158,67
4,94( -
6,38: 1,371
57¢ 513
- (100
- 64E
49t (624)
11,147 125,69¢
(25,76¢) (25,237)
- (50,000
(4,119 (4,729
(928) (127
98¢ 31C
(27,407 (1,497
106,40( 92,00(
(416,900 (104,500
401,57: -
(68,69¢) (48,829
1,04¢ -
(2,776 (43)
(36,579 (142,64)
$ 314 $ 22,93:
16,69( 1,212
$ 17,00 $ 24,14+




See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalizedludes cash distributions
owners of sold properties account for as financofgs663 and $482 for
2007 and 2006, respective $ 2266t $ 21,31

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéhfincing activities:

The following table summarizes the net asset aittpris and dispositions subject to mortgage notagaple and other nocast
transactions:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006

Assets:
Net real estate asse $ - 8 42,94¢
Restricted cas - (1,86%)
Accounts receivabl - 10z
Accrued straigt-line rents receivabl - 962
Investments in unconsolidated affilial - (2,06€)
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net - 287

$ - $ 40,36¢
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payal $ - % 39,96¢
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheritiiedbil - (1,652)

$ - $ 38,31
Minority Interest and Stockholders’ Equity $ - 3 2,05¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2007
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per shre data)
(Unaudited)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business

Highwoods Properties, Inc., together with its cdinlsted subsidiaries (the "Company"), is a fullyeigrated, self-administered and self-
managed equity real estate investment trust ("REIA&t operates in the southeastern and midwebtsited States. The Company condi
substantially all of its activities through Highwa® Realty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Penship”). Other than 22.4 acres
undeveloped land, 13 rental residential units dredGompanys interest in the Kessinger/Hunter, LLC and 4600digan Associates, LL
joint ventures (see Note 2), all of the Com[’s assets are owned directly or indirectly by the@png Partnership. As of March 31, 2(
the Company directly and/or through the Operatiagriership wholly owned: 320 iservice office, industrial and retail propertie®9Irenta
residential units; 625 acres of undeveloped larithisie for future development, of which 421 acres eonsidered core holdings; anc
additional 16 properties under development.

At March 31, 2007, the Company owned all of thefgured partnership interests (“Preferred Unitaf)d 93.2% of the comm
partnership interests ("Common Units") in the Opea Partnership. Limited partners (including certafficers and directors of t
Company) own the remaining Common Units. Gener#llg,Operating Partnership is required to redeesth Eommon Unit at the reques
the holder thereof for cash equal to the valuena share of the Company’s Common Stock, $.01 paeyghe “Common Stock™bhased o
the average of the market price for the 10 tradiags immediately preceding the notice date of sademption provided that the Compan
its option may elect to acquire any such CommortdJmiesented for redemption for cash or one sHa@®mmon Stock. The Common Ur
owned by the Company are not redeemable. Duringhtiee months ended March 31, 2007, the Compargeredd 618,257 Common Ut
for $27.4 million in cash, which increased the patage of Common Units owned by the Company fron2%2at December 31, 2006
93.2% at March 31, 2007. Preferred Units in the r@jreg Partnership were issued to the Company imection with the Company’
Preferred Stock offerings in 1997 and 1998 (theeféred Stock”).The net proceeds raised from each of the Pref&teck issuances we
contributed by the Company to the Operating Pastiprin exchange for the Preferred Units. The teofneach series of Preferred U
parallel the terms of the respective PreferredlSéscto dividends, liquidation and redemption right

Basis of Presentation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Compa@ prepared in accordance with U.S. Generallgefited Accounting Principl
(“GAAP”). Certain amounts in the December 31, 2006 Conselid&alance Sheet have been reclassified to contorrthe currer
presentation. As more fully described in Note 9reuired by Statement of Financial Accounting 8tad No. 144, Accounting for th
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” (“SEMNo. 144”),the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, @@86revised froi
previously reported amounts to reflect in real testend other assets held for sale those propéiesfor sale in the first three months of 2(
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per shre data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

The Consolidated Financial Statements include ther&ing Partnership, wholly owned subsidiaries #ode subsidiaries in which
Company owns a majority voting interest with thdighto control operations of the subsidiaries amidere no substantive participating ric
or substantive kick out rights have been grantethéominority interest holders. In accordance vETF Issue No. 04-5, Determining
Whether a General Partner or the General Partseas@roup, Controls a Limited Partnership or Simiatity When the Limited Partne
Have Certain Rights,the Company consolidates partnerships, joint vestand limited liability companies when the Compaawtrols th
major operating and financial policies of the gntlirough majority ownership or in its capacitygeneral partner or managing membe
addition, the Company consolidates those entitieany, where the Company is deemed to be the pyirbaneficiary in a variable inter:
entity (as defined by FASB Interpretation No. 4évised December 2003) “Consolidation of Variableedest Entities” (“FIN 46(R)"))All
significant intercompany transactions and accohat® been eliminated.

The accompanying unaudited financial informationthe opinion of management, contains all adjustmiéncluding normal recurrir
accruals) necessary for a fair presentation of Goenpany$ financial position, results of operations andhcfiews. The Company h
condensed or omitted certain notes and other irdtiom from the interim financial statements presdrih this Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q. These financial statements should be read ijunotion with the Company’s 2006 Annual Report amrf 10-K.

The preparation of financial statements in accatdamith GAAP requires management to make estinmtdsassumptions that affect
amounts reported in the financial statements andrapanying notes. Actual results could differ frimse estimates.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected and expects to contingedlify as a REIT under Sections 856 through 86thefinternal Revenue Code
1986, as amended (the “CodeA.corporate REIT is a legal entity that holds reatate assets and, through the payment of divid&a
stockholders, is generally permitted to reduce \aichthe payment of federal and state income tatethe corporate level. To maint
qualification as a REIT, the Company is requirediiiribute to its stockholders at least 90.0%t®fannual REIT taxable income, excluc
capital gains. Aggregate dividends paid on Prefe8®ck exceeded REIT taxable income (excludingtalagains) in 2006, which resulted
no required dividend on Common Stock in 2006 forIRIualification purposes. Continued qualificatias a REIT depends on
Companys ability to satisfy the dividend distribution tesstock ownership requirements and various othalifggation tests prescribed in 1
Code. The Company conducts certain business aetititrough a taxable REIT subsidiary, as permitieder the Code. The taxable R
subsidiary is subject to federal and state incoaxeg on its net taxable income. The Company regomigsions for income taxes, to
extent required under SFAS No. 109, “Accounting fiscome Taxes” (“SFAS No. 109"hased on its income recognized for finar
statement purposes, including the effects of temgodifferences between such income and the ammeugnized for tax purpos
Additionally, beginning January 1, 2007, the Compaegan to recognize and measure the effects dadrtaie tax positions under FA!
Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48”), “Accounting for ni¢ertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation oASANo. 109.”See Impact of New
Adopted and Issued Accounting Standards below aoté B2 for discussion of the effect of FIN 48 oa thompanys accounting for incon
taxes.



HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per shre data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Minority Interest

Minority interest in the accompanying Consolidatgédancial Statements relates primarily to the owhigr by various individuals a
entities other than the Company of Common Unitthin Operating Partnership. In addition, minoritiehest is also recorded for the 50
interest in a consolidated affiliate, Highwoods-krAssociates, LLC (“Markel”)the equity interest owned by a third party in asmidatec
venture formed during 2006 with Real Estate ExclkaBgrvices (“REES”")and the 7% equity interest owned by a third pantyPlazi
Residential LLC, a consolidated joint venture fodme February 2007 related to an office condominjomoject, as described below. As
March 31, 2007, minority interest in the Operatitartnership consisted of approximately 4.1 mill@mmmon Units. Minority interest in t
net income of the Operating Partnership is compigdpplying the weighted average percentage of r@emUnits not owned by tl
Company during the period (as a percent of thd tatenber of outstanding Common Units) to the OpegaPartnershig net income aft
deducting distributions on Preferred Units. Theuliess the amount of minority interest expense iftdome) recorded for the period.
addition, when a minority unitholder redeems a Camrnit for a share of Common Stock or cash, theonity interest is reduced and
Companys share in the Operating Partnership is increa&ethe end of each reporting period, the Compangrd@nes the amount tt
represents the minority unitholdershare of the net assets (at book value) of the @ipgr Partnership and compares this amount t
minority interest balance that resulted from tratisas during the period involving minority inteteShe Company adjusts the mino
interest liability to the computed share of neetssvith an offsetting adjustment to the Compampgkl in capital.

The organizational documents of Markel require thetity to be liquidated through the sale of its eéssupon reachit
December 31, 2100. As controlling partner, the Canyphas an obligation to cause this propemyting entity to distribute proceeds
liquidation to the minority interest partner in seepartially owned properties only if the net pextereceived by the entity from the sale ¢
assets warrant a distribution as determined bygreement. In accordance with the disclosure piangsof SFAS No. 150,Accounting fo
Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristi€¢soth Liabilities and Equity” (“SFAS No. 150"the Company estimates the valut
minority interest distributions would have been mmately $10.9 million had the entity been ligaidd as of March 31, 2007. T
estimated settlement value is based on estimatedl plarty consideration realizable by the entityompa hypothetical disposition of 1
properties and is net of all other assets andlili@lsi The actual amount of any distributions e tminority interest holder in this entity
difficult to predict due to many factors, includitige inherent uncertainty of real estate salethdfentitys underlying assets are worth |
than the underlying liabilities on the date of slighidation, the Company would have no obligatiomemit any consideration to the mino
interest holder.

In the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company enténédl an agreement with REES to ground lease cedeauelopment land to spec
purpose entities owned by REES. Under the agreerR&ES makes an equity contribution to each sutityeén an amount equal to 7%
the costs of constructing properties on the erstitghd (not to exceed $4.0 million outstandinghie &ggregate at any time). REES earr
agreed fixed return for its economic investmenthia entity. The balance of development costs anddd by third party construction loa
Until such third party construction loans are otéal, the remaining 93% of costs are loaned by thapgany to the entity. Subject to
exercise of a purchase option, it is expectedtti@properties will be acquired by the Companyhim fluture at an amount generally equi
the actual development costs incurred plus thelfieturn earned by REES for its economic investriretitese entities. Because the Com
is considered the primary beneficiary, the Compamysolidates these special purpose entities inrdanoe with FIN 46(R). Consolidal
entities will be reevaluated for primary beneficiary status when thétye undertakes additional activity, such as pigcthe developme
projects in-service. REES'investment in these entities is included in mitganterest as shown in the tables below. All sost form thi
entities and other related fees have been expassiedurred.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per shre data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

In the first quarter of 2007, the Compasytaxable REIT subsidiary formed Plaza Residentlal with Dominion Partners LL
(“Dominion”). Plaza Residential was formed to develop and sélr&Sidential condominiums to be constructed atzoveffice tower bein
developed by the Company in Raleigh, NC. Dominias b 7% equity interest in the project and willfpen development services for
joint venture for a market development fee and guotes 40.0% of the construction financing. Donminigll also receive 35.0% of the |
profits from the joint venture once the partnersenaeceived distributions equal to their equitysplu 12.0% return on their equity. ~
Company is consolidating this majority owned joiehture and intecompany transactions have been eliminated in thes@mlated Financi
Statements.

Following is minority interest as reflected in tBempany’s Consolidated Statements of Income and@inlated Balance Sheets:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006
Amount shown as minority interest in continuing Gt®ns(1) $ (2,629 $ (53%)
Amount related to income from discontinued opereat 9) (144
Amount related to gains on sales of discontinueztaions (1,48)) (136)
Total minority interest in net income $ (4,114 $ (815

(1) 2007 and 2006 includes $0.18 million and $0.09iarilelated to the consolidated entities other th&nOperating Partnersh

March 31, December 31,
2007 2006
Minority interest in the Operating Partnership $ 67,19 $ 76,84¢
Minority interest in Marke 2,071 2,11¢
Minority interest in REES 947 76C
Minority interest in Plaza Residential 157 _
Total minority interest $ 70,36¢ $ 79,72¢

Impact of Newly Adopted and Issued Accounting Stanards
In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, which the gamy adopted as of January 1, 2007. See Note ¥artber discussion.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1530y ‘Walue Measurements” (“SFAS No. 1573FAS No. 157 defines fair vall
establishes a framework for measuring fair valud erpands disclosures concerning fair value measmts. SFAS No. 157 becon
effective for the Company on January 1, 2008. Tlen@any is currently evaluating the impact SFAS N67 will have on its financi
condition and results of operations.

In December 2006, the FASB issued FSP EITF 00-1%2counting for Registration Payment Arrangeménts, specify that th
contingent obligation to make future payments dreowise transfer consideration under a registrafiagment arrangement should
separately recognized and measured in accordarnite RSB Statement No. 5, “Accounting for Contingexsc’ The FSP is effecti
immediately for registration payment arrangememd the financial instruments subject to those aeaments that are entered intc
modified subsequent to the issuance date of thid &&l effective for fiscal years beginning afterc@waber 15, 2006 and interim peri
within those fiscal years for arrangements thatenartered into prior to the issuance of this FSfe. 1Sote 5 for discussion of a registra
rights agreement the Company entered into in tiseduarter of 2007.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per shre data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159¢e“Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Finalnciabilities” (“*SFAS No
159”), which permits all entities to choose to measurgitdk items at fair value at specified electionedatSFAS No. 159 becomes effec
for the Company on January 1, 2008. The Compagyriently evaluating the impact SFAS No. 159 walk on its financial condition a
results of operations.

2. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AND OTHER AFFILIATES

The Company has various joint ventures with uneglabvestors and has retained equity interestangrigpm 12.5% to 50.0% in the
joint ventures. The Company accounts for its unolidated joint ventures using the equity methododounting. As a result, the assets
liabilities of these joint ventures for which the@pany uses the equity method of accounting arénchtded on the Comparg/tconsolidate
balance sheet.

During the third quarter of 2006, three of the Cams joint ventures made distributions aggregating.@iillion as a result of
refinancing of debt related to various propertiekitby the joint ventures. The Company receive@%0of such distributions. As a resull
these distributions, the Company’s investment actauthese joint ventures became negative. The aelot is norrecourse; however, t
Company and its partner have guaranteed othera@bhave contractual obligations to support thetjeentures, which are included in
Guarantees and Other Obligations table in NoteThkrefore, in accordance with SOP 78-B¢¢ounting for Investments in Real Esi
Ventures,”the Company recorded the distributions as a redluaf the investment account and included the tiesuhegative investme
balances of $6.7 million in accounts payable, aetrexpenses and other liabilities in the Consad&alance Sheet at March 31, 2007.

The Company has had a number of consolidated jentures. SFHIW Harborview Plaza, LP is accounted for as a riiag
arrangement pursuant to SFAS No. 66, “AccountingSales of Real Estate” (“SFAS No. 668s described in Note 3 to the Consolid
Financial Statements in the Company’s 2006 AnnugddRt on Form 10-K; MGHIW, LLC was accounted for as a financing arranget
pursuant to SFAS No. 66 as described in Note Baaonsolidated Financial Statements in the Conip&%06 Annual Report on Form 10-
K; The Vinings at University Center, LLC was coridated pursuant to FIN 46(R) as described furtiedows until late 2006 upon the sale
the ventures assets and distribution of its net cash assets partners; and Markel, REES and Plaza Resialemthich are discussed in N
1, are each consolidated.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per shre data)

2. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AND OTHER AFFILIATES - Continued

Investments in unconsolidated affiliates as of Madt, 2007 and combined summarized income statsnfentthe Company’
unconsolidated joint ventures for the three moetided March 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

Total Rentable

Square Feet Ownership
Joint Venture Location of Properties (000) Interest

Board of Trade Investment Compa Kansas City, MC 16€ 49.0(%
Dallas County Partners I, L Des Moines, IA 641 50.00(%
Dallas County Partners Il, L Des Moines, IA 272 50.0(%
Dallas County Partners Ill, L Des Moines, IA 7 50.0(%
Fountain Thres Des Moines, IA 78t 50.0(%
RRHWoods, LLC Des Moines, IA 80C (1) 50.0(%
Kessinger/Hunter, LL( Kansas City, MC —©® 26.5(%
4600 Madison Associates, LL Kansas City, MC 262 12.5(%
Plaza Colonnade, LL! Kansas City, MC 29C 50.0(%
Highwoods DLF 98/29, LP Atlanta, GA; Charlotte, NC;

Greensboro, NC; Raleigh, NC;

Orlando, FL; Baltimore, ML 92¢ 22.81 %
Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, LP Atlanta, GA; Greensboro, NC;

Orlando, FL 82z 42.9%
Highwoods KC Glenridge Office, L Atlanta, GA 18t 40.0(%
Highwoods KC Glenridge Land, L Atlanta, GA — 40.0%
HIW-KC Orlando LLC Orlando, FL 1,27¢ 40.0(%
Concourse Center Associates, L Greensboro, N( 11¢€ 50.0(%
Weston Lakeside, LLC Raleigh, NC —@3) 50.0(%
Total 6,54¢ (4)

(1) Includes a 31,000 square foot office building cotiseunder development and 418 rental residentiibu

(2) This joint venture provides property managemerdsileg and brokerage services and provides certaistrictionrelated services

certain Wholly Owned Properties; therefore, noablg square feet is provide

(3) This joint venture was constructing 332 rental destial units at December 31, 2006. These assets s@d in February 2007

described below

(4) Total does not include -service operating properties held by consolidadétt yentures totaling 618,000 square fi
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per shre data)

2. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AND OTHER AFFILIATES - Continued

For The Three Months
Ended March 31,

2007 2006
Income Statements
Revenues $ 38,017 $ 34,01¢
Expenses:
Operating expenst 15,16: 14,23¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 7,25: 6,99¢
Interest expense and loan cost amortization 8,63 8,32¢
Total expenses 31,04¢ 29,56!
Income before disposition of property 6,96¢ 4,457
Gains on disposition of property 20,62 ,
Net income $ 27,59 $ 4,45
The Company's share of:
Net income) $ 9,717 $ 2,08:
Depreciation and amortization (real estate related) $ 2,866 $ 2,67F
Interest expense and loan cost amortization $ 3,661 $ 3,48(
Gains on disposition of property $ 715¢ $ i,

(1) The Company’s share of net income differs fromnitighted average ownership percentage in the y@ntures’net income due to tl
Compan’s purchase accounting and other related adjustm

On September 27, 2004, the Company and an affibat€rosland, Inc. (“Crosland”jormed Weston Lakeside, LLC, in which
Company has a 50.0% ownership interest. On Jun2@®, the Company contributed 22.4 acres of lananaagreed upon value of $
million to this joint venture, and Crosland contried approximately $2.0 million in cash. Immedigtilereafter, the joint venture distribu
approximately $1.9 million to the Company and themany recorded a gain of $0.5 million. Croslanchaged and operated this jc
venture, which constructed approximately 332 rergsidential units in three buildings, at a tostiraated cost of approximately $33 milli
Crosland received 3.25% of all project costs othan land as a development fee and 3.5% of thesgmsenue of the joint venture
management fees. The joint venture financed theldpment with a $28.4 million construction loan ardeed by Crosland. The Comp
provided certain development services for the ptogad received a fee equal to 1.0% of all progests excluding land. The Company
accounted for this joint venture using the equigtimod of accounting. On February 22, 2007, thet jeémture sold the 332 rental resider
units to a third party for gross proceeds of $48illion. Mortgage debt in the amount of $27.1 naifliwas paid off and various developn
related costs were paid. The joint venture recomegin of $11.3 million in the first quarter of@0related to this sale and the Comg
recorded $5.0 million as its proportionate shareugh equity in earnings of unconsolidated affdmtThe Compang’share of the gain w
less than 50.0% due to Croslasgreferred return as the developer. The Compamgived a net distribution of $6.1 million and mageive .
further small and final distribution. As of May 2007, the joint venture is dormant pending thelfihistribution to the partners.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per shre data)

2. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AND OTHER AFFILIATES - Continued

Highwoods DLF 98/29, L.P.

The Company has a 22.81% interest in a joint ven{tDLF 1") with Schweiz-Deutschlant}SA Dreilander Beteiligung Objekt DI
98/29-Walker Fink-KG ("DLF"). The Company is theoperty manager and leasing agent of DL§ properties and receives custon
management and leasing fees. On March 12, 2007,IBbkl five properties to a third party for grqg®ceeds of $34.2 million and recor
a gain of $9.3 million related to this sale. Then@any recorded $2.1 million as its proportionatarshof this gain through equity in earni
of unconsolidated affiliates.

For additional information regarding the Companyther investments in unconsolidated and othdliaddls, see Note 2 to t
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Compa2a6 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

3. FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

For information regarding sale transactions thatehlaeen accounted for as financing arrangementsrysaragraphs 25 through 2¢
SFAS No. 66, see Note 5 herein and Note 3 to thes@lwated Financial Statements in the Companyd28nnual Report on Form 10-K.

4. ASSET DISPOSITIONS

Gains, losses and impairments on disposition ofgnttes, net, from dispositions not classified sea@htinued operations, consistet
the following:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006
Gains on disposition of land $ 15,83t $ 3,04(
Gains on disposition of depreciable properties 90¢ 1,27(C
Total $ 16,741 $ 4,31(

The above gains on land and depreciable propdrtiéise first quarter of 2006 includdeferred gain recognition from prior sales
adjustments to prior sale transactions.

Gains on sales of discontinued operations, netinbrity interest, consisted of the following:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006
Gains on disposition of depreciable properties $ 19,74 $ 1,894
Allocable minority interest (1,48)) (13¢6)
Total $ 18,26: $ 1,75¢

See Note 9 for information on discontinued operatiand impairment of long-lived assets.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per shre data)

5. MORTGAGES, NOTES PAYABLE AND FINANCING OBLIGATIONS

The Company’s consolidated mortgages and notedbfmygansisted of the following at March 31, 2004 &ecember 31, 2006:

March 31, December 31,
2007 2006
Secured mortgage loans $ 675,72: $ 741,62
Unsecured loans 811,781 723,50(
Total $ 1,48750¢ $ 1,465,12

(1) Represents stated amount less $1.2 million origgsale discount on bonds issued in 2(

As of March 31, 2007, the Compasydutstanding mortgages and notes payable wereeskby real estate assets with an aggr
undepreciated book value of approximately $1.0dill

The Companys $450.0 million unsecured revolving credit fagilis initially scheduled to mature on May 1, 208@suming no defat
exists, the Company has an option to extend thentatdate by one additional year and, at any tpner to May 1, 2008, may requ
increases in the borrowing availability under thedit facility by up to an additional $50 millioihe interest rate is LIBOR plus 80 b
points and the annual base facility fee is 20 bawists. The revolving credit facility had $366.9Ion of availability as of May 1, 2007.

The Company’s revolving credit facility and the émdure that governs the Operating Partnerstoptstanding notes require it to con
with customary operating covenants and varioushfired and operating ratios. The Company and ther&@ipg Partnership are each curre
in compliance with all such requirements.

On March 22, 2007, the Operating Partnership sé@D$nillion aggregate principal amount of 5.85% @¢otlue March 15, 2017, ne
original issue discount of $1.2 million. The notesre issued under the indenture, dated as of Demeinli996, among the Operal
Partnership, the Company and U.S. Bank Nationabéiation (as successor in interest to Wachovia Bahi.), the trustee, and pursuan
resolutions of the Board of Directors of the Compand an officerstertificate dated as of March 22, 2007 establishimegterms of the note
The Company used the net proceeds from the salkeohotes to repay borrowings outstanding undeuraecured nomevolving credi
facility that was obtained on January 31, 2007 ¢hivas subsequently terminated) and under thewiexgptredit facility. In connection wi
the completion of the offering, the Company and @perating Partnership entered into a registratigints agreement dated March 22, 2
with the initial purchasers of the notes. The regt®n rights agreement requires the Operatingneeship to file, within 90 days after !
closing date of the sale of the notes, a regismastatement with respect to an offer to exchahgenbtes for other freely tradable notes
are registered under the Securities Act of 1933tanthuse such exchange offer registration statetelmbecome effective within 180 d:
after the closing date. The Operating Partnershipequired to complete the exchange offer withi@ #ays after the closing date. If
Operating Partnership fails to comply with the ps@ns of the registration rights agreement, thergst rate will be increased by 0.25%
annum during the
90-day period immediately following the default amill increase by 0.25% per annum at the end oheambsequent 90ay period, but in r
event shall such increase exceed 0.50% per annamagément currently believes that the Companytimikly fulfill its obligations unde
the registration rights agreement and, accordingdyamounts have been recorded for potential fiadditional interest costs.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per shre data)

5. MORTGAGES, NOTES PAYABLE AND FINANCING OBLIGATIONS - Continued

Financing Obligations

The Company’s financing obligations consisted effibllowing at March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006

March 31, December 31,
2007 2006
SF-HIW Harborview, LP financing obligatiqm $ 16,14¢ $ 16,157
Tax increment financing obligatic(2) 18,30¢ 18,30¢
Capitalized ground lease obligati@n 1,07t 1,06¢
Total $ 35,52¢ $ 35,53(

(1) See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statemarttee Company’s 2006 Annual Report on FormKL@r further discussion of th
financing obligation

(2) In connection with tax increment financing for ctrastion of a public garage related to an officéding constructed by the Company
2000, the Company is obligated to pay fixed speagsessments over a $€ar period. The net present value of these assegs
discounted at 6.93% at the inception of the obiigatwhich represents the interest rate on the nyidg bond financing, is shown a:
financing obligation in the Consolidated Balance&hThe Company also receives special tax revaamgtproperty tax rebates recor
in interest and other income, which are intendedl ot guaranteed, to provide funds to pay theiapassessment

(3) Represents a capitalized lease obligation to thsoleof land on which the Company is constructingew building. The Company
obligated to make fixed payments to the lessorutinoOctober 2022 and the lease provides for fixéxkpurchase options in the ni
and tenth years of the lease. The Company intam@xercise the purchase option in order to preamneconomic penalty related
conveying the building to the lessor at the expirabf the lease. The net present value of thedfvental payments and purchase og
through the ninth year was calculated using a distoate of 7.1%. The assets and liabilities uritercapital lease are recorded al
lower of the present value of minimum lease paysentthe fair value. The liability accretes eachnthdor the difference between
interest rate on the financing obligation and iked payments. The accretion will continue unté thability equals the purchase optior
the land in the ninth year of the lea

6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Officer, Management and Director Compensation Progams

The Company's officers participate in an annualeguity incentive program whereby they are eligibleincentive payments based
a percentage of their annual base salary. In additi considering the pay practices of the Compapger group in determining each officer’
incentive payment percentage, the officer’s abilitynfluence the Compang’performance is also considered. Each officeranasget annu
non-equity incentive payment percentage that rafiges 25.0% to 85.0% of base salary depending enoffficer’s position. The offices’
actual incentive payment for the year is the proddiche target annual incentive payment percentiages a performance ‘factomwhich cat
range from zero to 200.0%. This performance fadapgends upon the relationship between how varieu®imance criteria compare w
predetermined goals. For an officer who has divigiesponsibilities, goals for certain performandeda are based partly on the divisien’
actual performance relative to that divisis®@stablished goals for each criteria and partlacinal total Company performance relative tc
same criteria. Incentive payments are accrued gpensed in the year earned and are generally paieifirst quarter of the following year.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per shre data)

6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS - Continued

Certain other members of management participatnimnnual norquity incentive program whereby a target annuahdacentiv:
payment is established based upon the job resplitiesgbof their position. Incentive payment eligity ranges from 10.0% to 40.0% of ann
base salary. The actual incentive payment is détedrby the overall performance of the Company tiedindividuals performance durir
each year. These incentive payments are also at@une expensed in the year earned and are geneaitlyin the first quarter of tl
following year.

The Companys officers generally receive annual grants of stmu#tons and restricted stock on or about Marcli dach year under t
Amended and Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan (theckOption Plan”). Stock options have also beeantgd to the Compang/directors
currently, directors do not receive annual stodkoopgrants. Restricted stock grants are also naadeally to directors and certain nofficer
employees. As of March 31, 2007, 9.0 million shavté€€ommon Stock were authorized for issuance umiderStock Option Plan. Stc
options issued prior to 2005 vest ratably over fpears and remain outstanding for 10 years. Stgtloms issued beginning in 2005 \
ratably over a fougear period and remain outstanding for seven y8drs.value of all options as of the date of grantdlculated using t!
Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

The Company generally makes annual grants of based restricted stock under its Stock Option Ridts directors, officers and ott
employees. Shares of tinb@&sed restricted stock issued prior to 2005 gelgarast 50.0% three years from the date of gradtthe remainin
50.0% five years from date of grant. Shares of #rased restricted stock that were issued to offieaed employees in 2005 will vest otfvrd
on the third anniversary, one-third on the fountimigersary and one-third on the fifth anniversafyhe date of grant. Shares of tirhase!
restricted stock that were issued to officers amgpleyees in 2006 and 2007 will vest 25% on the,fsecond, third and fourth annivers
dates, respectively. Shares of tilvesed restricted stock issued to directors geyeralit 25% on January 1 of each successive yeartht
grant date. The value of grants of til@sed restricted stock is based on the market \afl@mmon Stock as of the date of grant at
amortized to expense over the respective vestisgmice periods.

The Company also has issued shares of restrictett $b officers under its Stock Option Plan thatl west if the Companyg tota
shareholder return exceeds the average total eetafra selected group of peer companies over &-year period. If the Comparsytota
shareholder return does not equal or exceed susfage total returns, none of the total retbased restricted stock will vest. The 2006
2007 grants also contain a provision allowing fartial vesting if the annual total return in anyegi year of the thregear period exceeds ¢
on an absolute basis. The grant date fair valuesach such share of total returased restricted stock were determined by an @
consultant and are being amortized to expensestraight-line method over the three-year period.

The Company also has issued shares of performaamed restricted stock to officers under its StOpkion Plan that will vest pursus
to performance-based criteria. The performanceebasteria are based on whether or not the Compaeets or exceeds at the end of three:
year performance periods certain operating andfiah goals established under its Strategic Planth& extent actual performance equa
exceeds threshold performance goals, the porticshafes of performandesed restricted stock that vest can range from 80%9©0%. |
actual performance does not meet such thresholds,gnane of the performandmsed restricted stock will vest. The fair value
performancebased restricted share grants is based on the tvalke of Common Stock as of the date of grantthrdestimated performar
to be achieved at the end of the three-year peBogh fair value is being amortized to expense dherthreeyear performance perio
adjusting for the expected level of vesting thdt @gcur at those dates.
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6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS - Continued

Up to 100% of additional total return-based restdcstock and up to 50% of additional performabased restricted stock may be is¢
at the end of the thregear periods if actual performance exceeds celgaigls of performance. Such additional sharesnyf, avould be full
vested when issued. The Company will also accrderegord expense for additional performance-bakates during the thregear period t
the extent issuance of the additional shares isard based on the Compasmgurrent and projected actual performance. Inrdere witl
SFAS No. 123(R), no expense is recorded for additishares of total return-based restricted stbakrnay be issued at the end of the three
year period since that possibility is already retiel in the grant date fair valt

During the three months ended March 31, 2007 ar@b,2€he Company recognized approximately $1.2 omlland $0.9 millior
respectively, of stock-based compensation expeAseof March 31, 2007, there was $8.6 million ofatounrecognized stochkase!
compensation costs, which will be recognized owsemhted average remaining contractual term ofy2ats.

Using the BlackScholes options valuation model, the weighted ayeeffair values of options granted during the thmemnths ende
March 31, 2007 and 2006 were $6.32 and $3.98, c&spl/, per option. The fair values of the optiogsanted in 2007 and 2006 w
estimated at the grant dates using the followingykted average assumptions:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006
Risk free interest ratg) 4.5(% 4.65%
Common stock dividend yiel2) 4.05% 5.21%
Expected volatility3) 18.91% 18.8%
Average expected option life (yea() 5.7t 4.7t
Options grante: 143,62 241,15:

(1) Represents interest rate on US treasury bonds gnvinsame life as the estimated life of the Com’s options

(2) The dividend yield is calculated utilizing the dlends paid for the previous one-year period andCttrapanys stock price on the date
grant.

(3) Based on historical volatility of the Comp¢'s stock over a period relevant to the related stqtion grant

(4) The average expected option life for the grantdased on an analysis of historical company ¢
The following table summarizes information abowic&toption activity during the three months endeardh 31, 2007:

Options Outstanding

Weighted
Average
Number Exercise
of Shares Price
Balances at December 31, 2006 2,975,07. $ 24.67
Options grante: 143,62¢ 41.9¢
Options forfeitec (67,82%) 27.9¢
Options cancelle - -
Options exercised (834,18)) 23.37
Balances at March 31, 2007 2,216,69. $ 26.17
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6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS - Continued

Cash received or receivable from options exercisasl $7.1 million for the three months ended Marth2®07. The total intrinsic val
of options exercised during the three months endacth 31, 2007 was $18.6 million. No options wexereised during the three mon
ended March 31, 2006. The total intrinsic valueopfions outstanding at March 31, 2007 and 2006 $28%9 million and $49.1 milliol
respectively. The Company generally does not pettmitnet cash settlement of exercised stock opttaisdoes permit net share settler
for certain qualified exercises. The Company hpeliy of issuing new shares to satisfy stock apgaercises.

The following table sets forth information at Margh, 2007 about (a) the outstanding number of destigck options and those exper
to vest and (b) the number of those options treeaercisable.

Weighted
Weighted Aggregate Average
Average Intrinsic Remaining
Number of Exercise Value Life
Shares Price (in 000s) (years)
Outstanding 2,127,68' $ 26.0¢ $ 28,84¢ 4.80
Exercisable 1,488,220 $ 23.9¢ $ 23,11¢ 4.34

The following table summarizes activity in the tammonths ended March 31, 2007 for all time-bassticted stock grants:

Weighted

Average

Number of Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Nonvested shares outstanding at December 31, 255,12( $ 27.1z
Awarded and issug() 54,51¢ 42 1%
Vested(2) (33,689 28.1¢
Forfeited (21,64) 26.5¢
Surrendered for payment of withholding taxes upesting(2) (24,929 28.0¢t
Nonvested shares outstanding at March 31, . 229,38. $ 30.4¢

(1) The weighted average fair value at grant datenoé-based restricted shares issued during each ohitbe months ended March 31, 2
and 2006 was $2.3 milliol

(2) The vesting date fair value of tinfxsed restricted shares that vested during the thonths ended March 31, 2007 and 2006 was
million and $1.6 million, respectivel
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6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS - Continued

The following table summarizes activity in the thrmonths ended March 31, 2007 for all performarasedl and total returpase!
restricted stock grants:

Weighted

Average

Number of Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Nonvested shares outstanding at December 31, 106,64t $ 28.5¢
Awarded and issug() 40,62( 39.2¢
Vested - -
Forfeited (5,610 27.7(C
Surrendered for payment of withholding taxes upesting - R
Nonvested shares outstanding at March 31, . 141,65¢ $ 31.67

(1) The weighted average fair value at grant date dbpmance and total retudmased restricted shares issued during each ofitbe month
ended March 31, 2007 and 2006 was $1.6 mill

1999 Shareholder Value Plan

Grants under the 1999 Shareholder Value Plan wéeaded to reward the executive officers of the Gany when the total sharehol
returns measured by increases in the market vdlGemmon Stock plus dividends exceeded a compamatkex of the Compang’peers ove
a three-year period. Annual grants under this Biarto 2004 would result in cash payments basecherCompanys percentage change
shareholder return compared to the composite indés peer group. If the Comparsyperformance was not at least 100% of the peeip
no payout was made. To the extent performance dsdabe peer group, the payout would have increa¢edew grants were made under
1999 Shareholder Value Plan subsequent to 20041988 Shareholder Value Plan is accounted for la&bdity award and, accordingly,
each period-end, a liability equal to the curremmnputed fair value under the plan for all outstagdplan units, adjusted for the threea
vesting period, is recorded with corresponding gharor credits to compensation expense. For thetgyissued in early 2004 and wh
threeyear performance period ended on December 31, 20ldility of approximately $0.7 million was rected at December 31, 2006 v
an offset to compensation expense. During the threeths ended March 31, 2007, an additional $0lRomiwas recorded as a liability w
an offset to compensation expense. The Companytpai$0.9 million obligation in the first quartef 2007. No compensation expense
recorded under this plan for the three months eileth 31, 2006. There are no grants outstandiniguthis plan as of January 1, 2007.
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6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS - Continued

Retirement Plan

Effective for 2006, the Company adopted a retirenpéan applicable to all employees, including exeeuofficers, who, at the time
retirement, have at least 30 years of continuowdiftpd service or are at least 55 years old ancela least 10 years of continuous quali
service. Subject to advance retirement notice aedigion of a norcompete agreement with the Company, eligible retingould be entitle
to receive a pro rata amount of the annual incermgayment earned during the year of retirementkStptions and timéased restricted sto
granted by the Company to such eligible retireenduhis or her employment would be nforfeitable and become exercisable accordir
the terms of their original grants. Eligible reisewould also be entitled to receive a pro ratawnof any performancbased and tot
returnbased restricted stock originally granted to suigibde retiree during his or her employment thalbsequently vests after the retiren
date according to the terms of their original gsaithe benefits of this retirement plan apply awlyestricted stock and stock option gri
beginning in 2006 and will be phased in by appling benefits to 25% of grants made in 2006, to S8%rants made in 2007, to 75%
grants made in 2008 and to 100% of grants mad@0® 2nd thereafter. For employees who meet theeneg¢int eligibility requirements, th
grants are fully expensed immediately to the extérihe phasedh benefits because there is no future serviceiredun order to have ft
rights to the grants. Compensation expense retatéfik retirement plan was approximately $0.4 onilland $0.2 million in the three mon
ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Graatie prior to 2006 are unaffected.

Deferred Compensation

The Company has a deferred compensation plan pursuavhich each executive officer and director esett to defer a portion of bt
salary and/or annual incentive payment (or direfdes) for investment in various unrelated mutualds. Prior to January 1, 2006, exect
officers and directors also could elect to defeshceompensation for investment in units of phantammmon stock of the Company. At
end of each calendar quarter, any executive offet director who deferred compensation into phangtock was credited with units
phantom stock at a 15.0% discount. Dividends orptlentom units are assumed to be issued in addlitionits of phantom stock at a 15.
discount. If an officer that deferred compensatioder this plan leaves the Compangmploy voluntarily or for cause within two yearftel
the end of the year in which such officer deferrethpensation for units of phantom stock, at a mimmthe 15.0% discount and any dee
dividends are forfeited. Over the twear vesting period, the Company records additionaipensation expense equal to the 15.0% dis«
the accrued dividends and any changes in the maaket of Common Stock from the date of the defewhich aggregated $0.04 million ¢
$0.6 million for the three months ended March 3102 and 2006, respectively. Cash payments fronplhe for the three months enc
March 31, 2007 and 2006 were $0.1 million and $01@iBion, respectively. Transfers made from the mtban stock investment to ott
investments in the deferred compensation planh®three months ended March 31, 2007 was $0.4omilli

401(k) Savings Plan

The Company has a 401(k) savings plan coveringtaaotislly all employees who meet certain age angleyment criteria. Th
Company contributes amounts for each participardt edte of 75% of the employee’s contribution (op686 of each employeg’salary)
During the three months ended March 31, 2007 aé.2he Company contributed $0.4 million and $0iBian, respectively, to the 401(
savings plan. Administrative expenses of the plarmpaid by the Company.
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6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS - Continued

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase Platl factive employees under which employees cart édecontribute up to 25.0
of their base and annual incentive compensatiortHerpurchase of Common Stock. At the end of ehobetmonth offering period, tt
contributions in each participant's account balamtech includes accrued dividends, are applieddguire shares of Common Stock at a
that is calculated at 85.0% of the lower of therage closing price on the New York Stock Exchangéehe five consecutive days precec
the first day of the quarter or the five days podieg the last day of the quarter. The Operatingrieaship issues one Common Unit to
Company in exchange for the price paid for eaclheshhCommon Stock. Securities and Exchange CononigsSEC”) rules prohibited tF
Company from issuing shares of Common Stock putsoatine plan under the Company’s Forn8 &egistration statement during 2005 a
portion of 2006 because of the delay in the filrighe Companys SEC reports. As a result, no shares were issugagcthis period under tl
plan, and the funds were held by a trustee. Inebeiper 2006, the funds were released by the truside48,035 shares were issuec
addition, in the three months ended March 31, 2€% Company issued 5,895 shares of Common Stadéruhe Employee Stock Purch
Plan. The discount on newly issued shares is expklmg the Company as additional compensation agteggted $0.03 and $0.05 millior
the three months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006ectsely.

7 . DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (“AOCIat) March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 was $1lomand $1.5 million
respectively, and consisted of deferred gains asdels from past cash flow hedging instruments whrehbeing recognized as inte
expense over the terms of the related debt (see 8)otThe Company expects that the portion of tirawative loss recorded in AOCL
March 31, 2007 associated with these derivativieunsents, which will be recognized as interest eggewithin the next 12 months, will
approximately $0.4 million.

8. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehensive income represents net incometpke changes in certain amounts deferred in adeted other comprehens
income/(loss) related to hedging activities notewted in the Consolidated Statements of Income ddmponents of other comprehen
income are as follows:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006
Net income $ 52,55¢ $ 14,14¢
Other comprehensive incorr
Amortization of hedging gains and losses includedther comprehensive income 142 177
Total other comprehensive income 142 177
Total comprehensive income $ 52,70 $ 14,32
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9. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND THE IMPAIRMENT OF LONG- LIVED ASSETS

As part of its business strategy, the Company frdlin time to time selectively dispose of noore properties in order to use the
proceeds for investments, for repayment of debfaamédemption of Preferred Stock, or other purpo3die table below sets forth the
operating results and net carrying value of thosse® classified as discontinued operations inGbmpanys Consolidated Financ
Statements. These assets classified as discontopezdtions comprise 3.3 million square feet oiceffand industrial properties and 173 re
residential units sold during 2006 and the threatim® ended March 31, 2007. These Itimged assets relate to disposal activities thate
initiated subsequent to the effective date of SIS 144, or that met certain stipulations presctibg SFAS No. 144. The operations
these assets have been reclassified from the apopierations of the Company to discontinued opamatiand the Company will not have
significant continuing involvement in the operasaafter the disposal transactions:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006

Rental and other revenues $ 24z $ 4,38
Operating expenses

Rental property and other expen 12t 1,62¢

Depreciation and amortization 5 1,10¢

Total operating expenses 13C 2,73(

Interest expense - 10¢
Other income 7 18
Income before minority interest in the Operating Patnership and gains on sales of

discontinued operations 11¢ 1,567

Minority interest in discontinued operations (9) (144)
Income from discontinued operations, net of minoriy interest in the Operating

Partnership 11C 1,42:

Gains on sales of discontinued operations 19,74: 1,894

Minority interest in discontinued operations (1,487) (136)
Gains on sales of discontinued operations, net ofinority interest in the Operating

Partnership 18,26: 1,75¢
Total discontinued operations $ 18,37. $ 3,181

The net book value of properties classified as affiSnued operations that were sold during 2006 #rel three months end
March 31, 2007 and held for sale at March 31, 2@fjregated $228.8 million.

SFAS No. 144 also requires that a Idivged asset classified as held for sale be measairéue lower of the carrying value or fair ve
less cost to sell. During the three months endeccMal, 2007 and 2006, there were no propertied foelsale which had a carrying va
that was greater than fair value less cost to g@lefore, no impairment loss was recognized énGbnsolidated Statements of Income fo
three months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006.
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9. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND THE IMPAIRMENT OF LONG- LIVED ASSETS - Continued

SFAS No. 144 also requires that if indicators op&inment exist, the carrying value of a loinged asset classified as held for ust
compared to the sum of its estimated undiscountadd cash flows. If the carrying value is gredtem the sum of its undiscounted ful
cash flows, an impairment loss should be recogniaethe excess of the carrying amount of the asget its estimated fair value. In eacl
the three months ended March 31, 2007 and 200Bdicators of impairment existed for assets heldufee. Therefore, no impairment los
were recorded in the three months ended March@17 2nd 2006.

The following table includes the major classes ssfeds and liabilities of the properties classitisdheld for sale as of March 31, 2
and December 31, 2006:

March 31, December 31,
2007 2006
Land $ - % 3,46:
Land held for developme! 5,391 14,98:
Buildings and tenant improvemet - 21,94¢
Accumulated depreciation - (6,829
Net real estate asse 5,391 33,56¢
Deferred leasing costs, r - 43t
Accrued straight line rents receival - 727
Prepaid expenses and other 12¢ 217
Total assets $ 551¢ $ 34,94
Tenant security deposits, deferred rents and ad@ostg1) $ 22C $ 52E

(1) Included in accounts payable, accrued expensesthrd liabilities.
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10. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation aéic and diluted earnings per share:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006
Basic income per share
Numerator:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 34,18t $ 10,96
Preferred Stock dividenc (4,119 (4,729
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption costs oveyiogrvalue - (1,809
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders 30,07: 4,43¢
Income from discontinued operations 18,37. 3,181
Net income available for common stockholders $ 48,44 $ 7.,61¢
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per share — weigatedage shares 56,04( 53,81
Basic earnings per shau
Income from continuing operatiol $ 05: $ 0.0¢
Income from discontinued operations 0.32 0.0¢
Net income $ 08¢ $ 0.14
Diluted income per share:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 34,18t $ 10,96¢
Preferred Stock dividenc (4,119 (4,729
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption costs oveyiogrvalue - (1,809
Minority interest in the Operating Partnership 2,44¢ 444
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders 32,52: 4,88:
Income from discontinued operatic 18,37: 3,181
Minority interest in the Operating Partnership isantinued operations 1,49( 28C
Income from discontinued operations 19,86: 3,461
Net income available for common stockholders $ 52,38: $ 8,34:
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per st— adjusted weighted average shg) 56,04( 53,81
Add:
Employee and director stock options and warr 1,06( 1,19¢
Common Units 4,54; 5,422
Unvested restricted stock 25¢ 15¢
Denominator for diluted earnings per share — adflisteighted average shares and
assumed conversiol 61,90( 60,58¢)
Diluted earnings per shat
Income from continuing operatiol $ 05: % 0.0¢
Income from discontinued operations 0.32 0.0€
Net income $ 0.8t $ 0.14

(1) Weighted average shares exclude shares of unvestgtted stock pursuant to SFAS 1

(2) Options and warrants aggregating approximatelyniildon shares were outstanding during the threenttn® ended March 31, 2006
were not included in the computation of dilutedné@gs per share because the exercise prices optimns and warrants were higher t
the average market price of Common Stock duringpghdod.
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash and cash equivaleastments and its restricted cash at financistitiutions. The combined acco
balances at each institution typically exceed Fibi§€lirance coverage and, as a result, there is@ntmation of credit risk related to amot
on deposit in excess of FDIC insurance coverage.

Land Leases

Certain properties in the Compasyvholly owned portfolio are subject to land leasgpiring through 2082. Rental payments on t
leases are adjusted annually based on either tieuowr price index (CPI) or on a ptetermined schedule. Land leases subject to ines
under a pre-determined schedule are accountechtteruhe straighline method. Total expense recorded for land leases$0.3 million fc
each of the three months ended March 31, 2007 @06, 2espectively.

For one property owned at March 31, 2007, the Combas the option to purchase the leased lanceithind year of the lease term i
purchase price of $1.1 million, which increases&%ually beginning in year three through the fifittbeyear of the lease.

As of March 31, 2007, the Compasypayment obligations for future minimum paymentsoperating leases (which include sched
fixed increases, but exclude increases based oywiPé as follows:

Remainder of 200 $ 797
2008 1,077
2009 1,11¢
2010 1,13¢
2011 1,15¢
Thereafter 45,54;

Environmental Matters

Substantially all of the Company’s service properties have been subjected to Phaswiloemental assessments (and, in ce
instances, Phase Il environmental assessmentsh &sessments and/or updates have not revealeds mosanagement aware of, i
environmental liability that management believesuldohave a material adverse effect on the acconipgngonsolidated Financ
Statements.
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued

Guarantees and Other Obligations

The following is a tabular presentation and relatisdussion of various guarantees and other obigatas of March 31, 2007:

Amount Date
Type of Recorded/ Guarantee
Entity or Transaction Guarantee or Other Obligation Deferred Expires
Des Moines Joint Venturg),(6) Debt $ — 11/2015
RRHWoods, LLC2),(7) Indirect Debi) $ 403 8/2010
Plaza Colonnad(),(8) Indirect Debi4) $ 37 12/2009
SF-HIW Harborview Plaza, LI3),(5) Rent and tenant improveme(4) $ — 9/2007
Eastshore (Capital On@3),(9) Rent) $ 2,97¢ 11/2007
Industrial(3),(10) Environmental costg) $ 12¢E Until
Remediatel
Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, L(2),(11) Rent) $ 41¢ 6/2008
RRHWoods, LLC and Dallas County Partn(2),(12) Indirect Debf(4) $ 49 6/2014
RRHWoods, LLC(2),(14) Indirect Debi4) $ 28 11/2009
HIW-KC Orlando, LLC(3),(13) Rent() $ 39t 4/2011
HIW-KC Orlando, LLC(3),(13) Leasing Cost $ 29C Until Paid
Capitalized Lease Obligatioi(15) Debt $ 451 Various
Brickstone(2),(16) Debt $ — 5/2017

(1) Represents guarantees entered into prior to theadai, 2003 effective date of FASB Interpretatim 45, “Guarantos Accounting an
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Includindiréct Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others” (“#N for initial recognition an

measuremen

(2) Represents guarantees that fall under the ing@dgnition and measurement requirements of FIN

(3) Represents guarantees that are excluded from itheafae accounting and disclosure provisions df Bb because the existence of ¢

guarantees prevents sale treatment and/or thenioogof profit from the sale transactic

(4) The maximum potential amount of future paymentsldsged for these guarantees assumes the Compasytimmynaximum possit
liability under the guaranty with no offsets or wetions. With respect to the rent guarantee, ifsppace is leased, it assumes the exi
tenant defaults at March 31, 2007 and the spacaimnsnunleased through the remainder of the guartanty. If the space is vacant
assumes the space remains vacant through the #opicd the guaranty. Since it is assumed that e tenant will occupy the spa

lease commissions, if applicable, are exclu

(5) As more fully described in Note 3 to the ConsokdbFinancial Statements in the Company’s 2006 AhRegort on Form 10, in 200z
the Company granted its partner in BRA/ Harborview Plaza, LP a put option and entergd a master lease arrangement for five y
covering vacant space in the building owned byjolire venture. The Company also agreed to pay icetésmant improvement costs. 1
maximum potential amount of future payments the @amy could be required to make related to the prrarantees and ten

improvements was $0.2 million as of March 31, 2(
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued

The Company has guaranteed certain loans in cdoneeith the Des Moines joint ventures. The maximpatential amount of futu
payments that the Company could be required to nuakier the guarantees is $8.6 million at March2®D7. This amount relates
housing revenue bonds that require credit enhantisnie addition to the real estate mortgages. Tdralb bear a floating interest r:
which at March 31, 2007 averaged 3.67%, and matu2€15. If the joint ventures are unable to reff@youtstanding balance under tt
housing revenue bonds, the Company will be requivepay its maximum exposure under these loaasolse provisions exist tl
enable the Company to recover some or all of sulyments from the joint venturegissets. The joint venture currently gene
sufficient cash flow to cover the debt service isgpiby the loan

In connection with the RRHWoods, LLC joint venturhe Company guaranteed $3.1 million relating tdetier of credit an
corresponding master lease, which expires in Aug0%0. The guarantee requires the Company to pdgrumcontingent master leas
the cash flows from the building securing the letiecredit do not cover at least 50% of the minimdebt service. The letter of cre
along with the building secure the industrial ravefonds used to finance the property. These bmadisre in 2015. Recourse provisi
exist such that the Company could recover somdl af ¢he payments made under the letter of crgddrantee from the joint ventuse’
assets. At March 31, 2007, the Company recorde@laillion deferred charge included in other assetd liabilities on its Consolidat
Balance Sheet with respect to this guarantee. Tdmap@nys maximum potential exposure under this guaranteg $8.1 million ¢
March 31, 2007

The Plaza Colonnade, LLC joint venture has a $3Baminon-recourse mortgage that bears a fixed interesiofeie’ %, requires month
principal and interest payments and matures onaigur81, 2017. The Company and its joint venturegngarhave signed a conting
master lease limited to 30,772 square feet, whigdires in December 2009. The Compangiaximum exposure under this master |
was $1.2 million at March 31, 2007. However, thereat occupancy level of the building is sufficietat cover all debt servi
requirements

As more fully described in Note 3 to the ConsokdhFinancial Statements in the Company’s 2006 AhRegort on Form 10, in
connection with the sale of three office buildingsa third party in 2002 (the “Eastshoitednsaction), the Company agreed to guari
rent shortfalls and re-tenanting costs for a fieatyperiod of time from the date of sale (througbvé&mber 2007). The Compasy’
maximum exposure to loss under these agreemertsMarch 31, 2007 was $3.0 million. These threddings were leased to a sin
tenant, Capital One Services, Inc., a subsidiargayital One Financial Services, Inc., under ledlsasexpire from May 2006 to Mar
2010. This transaction had been accounted for fazaacing transaction and was recorded as a coetpledle transaction in the tF
quarter of 2005 when the maximum exposure to losieuthese guarantees became less than the rd&ftaded gain; gain is now be
recognized as the maximum exposure under the gieasis reduce(

(10)In December 2003, the Company sold 1.9 million sgdeet of industrial property. As part of the salee Company agreed to indemi

and hold the buyer harmless with respect to enuemtal concerns on the property of up to $0.1 amilliAs a result, $0.1 million of t
gain was deferred at the time of sale and will riendaferred until the environmental concerns amneadiated

(12)In the Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, LP joint verd, a single tenant currently leases an entirldingi under a lease scheduler

expire on June 30, 2008. The tenant also leasese sipaother buildings owned by the Company. In goofion with an overe
restructuring of the tenastleases with the Company and with this joint vemtthe Company agreed to certain changes to #se it
the joint venture in September 2003. The modifaraiincluded allowing the tenant to vacate the weson January 1, 2006, reduc
the rent obligation by 50.0% and converting thet"iease to a “full servicelease with the tenant liable for 50.0% of thesd<as the
time. In turn, the Company agreed to compensatejdh¢ venture for any economic losses incurredaasesult of these leg
modifications. As of March 31, 2007, the Compang hApproximately $0.4 million in other liabilitieaé $0.4 million as a deferred cha
in other assets recorded on its Consolidated Bal&feet to account for the lease guarantee. Howsheuld new tenants occupy
vacated space prior to the end of the guarantdgedyen June 2008, the Compansyiability under the guarantee would diminish.

Companys maximum potential amount of future payments wébard to this guarantee as of March 31, 2007 v@a§ #illion. Nc
recourse provisions exist to enable the Compamgdover any amounts paid to the joint venture utiiisrlease guarantee arrangem
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued

(12)RRHWoods, LLC and Dallas County Partners finandesl ¢onstruction of two buildings with a $7.4 millidenyear loan. As &
inducement to make the loan at a 6.3% ltewga rate, the Company and its partner agreed &tandease the vacant space and
guaranteed $0.8 million of the debt with limiteccoarse. As leasing improves, the guarantee obtigatunder the loan agreerr
diminish. As of March 31, 2007, no master leasenmyts were necessary. The Company currently hasded $0.05 million in oth:
liabilities and $0.05 million as a deferred chamgeuded in other assets on its Consolidated Bal@teet with respect to this guarar
The maximum potential amount of future payments tha Company could be required to make based @wrdlrent leases in place \
approximately $2.1 million as of March 31, 2007 eTtkelihood of the Company paying on its $0.8 il guarantee is remote since
joint venture currently satisfies the minimum debverage ratio and should the Company have totpgoition of the guarantee, it wo
be entitled to recover the $0.8 million from otf@nt venture asset

(13)As more fully described in Note 2 to the ConsokdhFinancial Statements in the Company’s 2006 AnhRegort on Form 10, in
connection with the formation of HIWC Orlando, LLC, the Company agreed to guaranteé e the joint venture for 3,248 renta
square feet commencing in August 2004 and expiringpril 2011. The Compang’ maximum potential amount of future payments
regard to the guarantee is $0.4 million as of M&th2007. Additionally, the Company agreed to gotge the initial leasing cos
originally estimated at $4.1 million, for approxitely 11% of the total square feet of the propenyned by the joint venture. T
Company has paid approximately $0.07 million in 2@@der this guarantee, and approximately $0.3amiik estimated to remain uni
the guarantee at March 31, 20

(14)In connection with the RRHWoods, LLC joint ventutiee Company and its partner each guaranteed 38i0mto a bank. This guarant
expires in November 2009 and can be renewed, goitieventures option, through November 2011. The bank provadéster of cred
securing industrial revenue bonds, which maturéNavember 2015. The joint ventuseindustrial building secures the bonds.
Company would be required to perform under the gni@e should the joint venture be unable to repaybbnds. The Company |
recourse provisions to recover from the joint vesisiassets. The property collateralizing the bondeigges sufficient cash flow to co
the debt service required by the bond financingddition to the direct guarantee, the Companyisnoitted to a master lease for 509
the debt service should the cash flow from the @riypnot be able to pay the debt service of thedboAs a result of this master lease
Company has recorded $0.03 million in other lidieii and as a deferred charge in other assetssdboitsolidated Balance Shee
March 31, 2007

(15)Represents capitalized lease obligations of $0.omirelated to office equipment, which is inclutlén accounts payable, accn
expenses and other liabilities on the Com|'s Consolidated Balance Sheet at March 31, 2

(16)In 2006, RRHWoods, LLC completed construction ofoffice building with a loan by the Compasyjoint venture partner. In Febru.
2007, the joint venture borrowed $4.1 million. Tlhan is nonrecourse; however, since the building is currentily 35.0% leased, t
lender has required a $1.5 million letter of creditadditional collateral. The Compasiyoint venture partner agreed to provide the
of credit and the Company has in turn agreed tolarse its partner for 50.0%. The Company woulddogiired to pay on its guaran
should the joint venture be unable to repay thetanting loan balance. However, the joint ventungently generates sufficient ci
flow to cover the debt service required by the loAs a result, no liability was recorded for thatde of credit guarantee as
March 31, 2007
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued

Litigation, Claims and Assessments

The Company is from time to time a party to a wgrigf legal proceedings, claims and assessmerdim@iin the ordinary course of
business. The Company regularly assesses thetlebihnd contingencies in connection with thesétena based on the latest informa
available. For those matters where it is probabé the Company has incurred or will incur a loed ¢he loss or range of loss car
reasonably estimated, reserves are recorded i@dhsolidated Financial Statements. In other ingsnleecause of the uncertainties relat
both the probable outcome and amount or range g¥, la reasonable estimate of liability, if any, reethbe made. Based on the cur
expected outcome of such matters, none of theseepdings, claims or assessments is expected to ehavaterial adverse effect on
Company’s business, financial condition or resafteperations.

In 2006 and March 2007, the Company received assats for state excise taxes and related interestiating to approximately $t
million, related to periods 2002 through 2005. T®empany believes that it is not subject to suclkesaand has vigorously disputed
assessment. Based on the advice of counsel congetfmé status of settlement discussions and orCtmapanys analysis, the Compa
currently believes it is probable that all exciae assessments, including additional potentialssssents for 2005 and 2006, can be settl¢
the payment of franchise taxes of approximatelyb $4illion, and in the fourth quarter of 2006 suahaant was accrued and charge
operating expenses. Legal fees related to thissmatire nominal and were charged to operating esgseas incurred in 2006 and 2007.

12. INCOME TAXES

The Companys Consolidated Financial Statements include operstiof the taxable REIT subsidiary, which is notitkzd to the
dividends paid deduction and is subject to corgorstate and local income taxes. As a REIT, the 2my may also be subject to cer
federal excise taxes if it engages in certain tygfdeansactions.

Other than the liability for an uncertain tax pmsitand related accrued interest under FIN 48 dsed below, no provision has b
made for federal and state income taxes for theTRIgking the three month periods ended March 30728hd 2006 because the Comg
qualifies as a REIT under the Code. The taxableTR&tIbsidiary has operated at a cumulative taxaids through March 31, 2007
approximately $11.2 million and has paid no incomees since its formation. In addition to the $&Blion deferred tax asset for the
cumulative tax loss carryforwards, the taxable RElibsidiary also had net deferred tax liabiliti€sapproximately $1.2 million compris
primarily of tax versus book basis differences éntain investments and depreciable assets helidbyakable REIT subsidiary. Because
future tax benefit of all of the cumulative lossesiot assured, the approximate $2.7 million nétrled tax asset position of the taxable F
subsidiary has been fully reserved as managemesg dot believe that it is more likely than not thia¢ net deferred tax asset will
recognized. Accordingly, no tax benefit has beaogaized in the accompanying Consolidated Finariatements. The tax benefit of
cumulative losses could be recognized for finanalorting purposes in future periods to the exthattaxable REIT subsidiary gener:
sufficient taxable income.
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12 . INCOME TAXES - Continued

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, which clesifthe accounting for uncertainty in income tay@gnized in an enterprise’
financial statements in accordance with SFAS N&. 1IN 48 prescribes a comprehensive model for rd@pgnition, measureme
presentation and disclosure in the Comparfiiancial statements for uncertain tax positital®en or expected to be taken in an incom:
return. The Company adopted FIN 48 effective Jantia2007.

In connection with the adoption of FIN 48, on Jayubh 2007, the Company recorded a $1.4 milliomiligy for an uncertain te
position, with the related expense reflected asdaiction to the beginning balance of distributiongxcess of net earnings. This liability
included in accounts payable, accrued expensestaed liabilities. The Company believes it is rezsuly possible that, within 12 months,
liability for the uncertain tax position will beversed, and income recognized, upon the expiratidhe applicable statute of limitations.

In addition, the Company adopted the policy of sifggng related interest and penalties as inconxeetgpense. On January 1, 2(
approximately $0.2 million of accrued interest wasorded for uncertain tax positions as part of$thel million noted above. There were
significant changes in the components of the ligbiluring the first quarter of 2007. No penalties/e been accrued.

The Company is subject to federal, state and ocalme tax examinations by tax authorities for 2608ugh 2006.
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13. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The sole business of the Company is the acquisitiemelopment and operation of rental real estaipgrties. The Company operate
four segments: office, industrial, retail and resitlal properties. Each segment has different custe and economic characteristics ¢

rental rates and terms, cost per square foot dilings, the purposes for which customers use tlaeespthe degree of maintenance

customer support required and customer dependencglifterent economic drivers, among others. Tha® @o material intesegmer

transactions.

The accounting policies of the segments are theesasrthose described in Note 1 included hereirthBgrall operations are within 1
United States and, at March 31, 2007, no tenathefWholly Owned Properties comprised more thafo6of the Company consolidate

revenues.

The following table summarizes the rental incomet, operating income and assets for each reporsggment for the three mon

ended March 31, 2007 and 2006:

Rental and Other Revenues()

Office segmen
Industrial segmer

Retail segmer
Residential segment

Total Rental and Other Revenues

Net Operating Income: (1)
Office segmen
Industrial segmer
Retail segmer
Residential segment

Total Net Operating Income

interest and equity in earnings of unconsolidatedféiliates:
Depreciation and amortizatic
General and administrative expel

Interest expens

Interest and other income

in earnings of unconsolidated affiliat

Total Assets:(2)

Office segmen
Industrial segmer
Retail segmer

Rental residential segme
Corporate and other

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006
$ 88,91: $ 83,60¢
7,92¢ 6,891
11,59¢ 10,27:
311 31C
$ 108,74: $ 101,07
$ 55,77 $ 52,50°
6,06¢ 5,36:
7,64¢ 6,95t
117 137
69,60¢ 64,96
Reconciliation to income before disposition of proerty, insurance gain, minority
(29,74)) (27,64¢)
(10,91)) (8,697)
(24,247 (25,49¢)
1,51¢ 1,97
Income before disposition of property, insurance gainority interest and equity $ 6221 % 5107
March 31, December 31,
2007 2006
$ 2,222,300 % 2,218,70!
232,77¢ 230,10¢
245,45 247,88
19,64( 21,93
130,53: 126,22!
$ 2,850,70. $ 2,844,85.

Total Assets

(1) Net of discontinued operatior
(2) Real estate and other assets held for sale aredeatiin this table according to the segment t
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per shre data)

14. OTHER EVENTS

Gain on Property Insurance Settlement

In the fourth quarter of 2005, one of the Comparoffice properties located in southeastern Flosigstained damage in a hurricane.
damages are fully insured except for a $341,00@ctédule, which was expensed in the fourth quarfe20®5. The Company did not incur ¢
significant loss of rental income as a result &f tamages. In 2006, the Company received $2.4omifiom the insurance company
advances on the final settlement; these amounte wemarily for clean up costs and certain repdiifse Company is in the process
completing final permanent repairs. During thetfggarter of 2007, the insurance company paid th@gany an additional $4.9 million ug
finalization of the claim. The Company recorded 41$million gain under FASB Interpretation No. 3Qccounting for Involuntar
Conversion of Non-Monetary Assets to Monetary Assiet the first quarter of 2007.

Preferred Stock Redemptions
On April 27, 2007, the Company announced that it wideem, on May 29, 2007, 1.6 million of its datsding Series B Preferr
Shares, aggregating $40.0 million plus accruedwarphid dividends. In connection with this redemptithe excess of the redemption

over the net carrying amount of the redeemed shisrestimated to be $1.4 million and will be reeidis a reduction to net income avail
for common shareholders in the second quarter @7 20
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and analys conjunction with the accompanying Consolidaténancial Statements ¢
related notes contained elsewhere in this Quarkelyort.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the information in this Quarterly Reportymeontain forwardeoking statements. Such statements include, iticpdar,
statements about our plans, strategies and praspader this section and under the heading "Busih&%®u can identify forwardeoking
statements by our use of forward-looking terminglegich as "may,” "will,” "expect,” "anticipate,” 8&imate,” ‘tontinue" or other simili
words. Although we believe that our plans, intemsicand expectations reflected in or suggested bl sarwardiooking statements &
reasonable, we cannot assure you that our platentions or expectations will be achieved. Whensatering such forwartboking
statements, you should keep in mind the followingpartant factors that could cause our actual resaltdiffer materially from tho:
contained in any forward-looking statement:

e Speculative development activity by our competitorsour existing markets could result in an excessupply of office
industrial and retail properties relative to tend@mand

o the financial condition of our tenants could detsate;

e We may not be able to complete development, adgisireinvestment, disposition or joint ventur@jpcts as quickly or on
favorable terms as anticipate

e We may not be able to lease or release space yuickin as favorable terms as old leases;
e iNncreases in interest rates would increase oursigbitce costs;

e We may not be able to meet our liquidity requiretae obtain capital on favorable terms to fund working capital needs a
growth initiatives or to repay or refinance outstismg debt upon maturity

e We could lose key executive officers; and
e our southeastern and midwestern markets may auffpected declines in economic growth.

This list of risks and uncertainties, however, @ imtended to be exhaustive. You should also wevie other cautionary statements
make in “Business — Risk Factors” set forth in 2006 Annual Report.

Given these uncertainties, you should not placaieréliance on forwartboking statements. We undertake no obligation ubliply
release the results of any revisions to these fahlaking statements to reflect any future eventsiamumstances or to reflect the occurre
of unanticipated events.

OVERVIEW

We are a fully integrated, self-administered arlft senaged equity REIT that provides leasing, managgrdevelopment, constructi

and other customer-related services for our pragsednd for third parties. As of March 31, 2007, evened or had an interest in 385 i

service office, industrial and retail propertieacempassing approximately 33.9 million square fedtich includes 17 irservice office an
industrial development properties that had notrgathed 95% stabilized occupancy aggregating appately 2.6 million square feet, a
527 rental residential units. We are based in BhldNorth Carolina, and our properties and devekpntand are located in Florida, Geor
lowa, Kansas, Maryland, Missouri, North Carolinau Carolina, Tennessee and Virginia. Additiomfdimation about us can be found
our website at www.highwoods.com. Information om website is not part of this Quarterly Report.
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Results of Operations

Approximately 81.8% of our rental and other revefroen continuing operations is derived from ouriggfproperties. As a result, wtr
we own and operate a limited number of industrietail and residential properties, our operatingults depend heavily on successt
leasing our office properties. Furthermore, sinppraximately 65% of our annualized revenues froficefproperties come from properi
located in Florida, Georgia, North Carolina and fiessee, economic growth in those states is and owiltinue to be an import:
determinative factor in predicting our future ogerg results.

The key components affecting our rental revenueastr are dispositions, acquisitions, new developsnpleced in service, aver:
occupancy and rental rates. Average occupancy ginharcreases during times of improving economiovgth, as our ability to lease sp
outpaces vacancies that occur upon the expiratibegisting leases. Average occupancy generalljirdecduring times of slower econor
growth, when new vacancies tend to outpace ouityalil lease space. Asset acquisitions, dispositamd new developments placed in se
directly impact our rental revenues and could impmag average occupancy, depending upon the occypate of the properties that
acquired, sold or placed in service. A further @ador of the predictability of future revenuestis expected lease expirations of our portf
As a result, in addition to seeking to increase agrage occupancy by leasing current vacant spae@lso must concentrate our lea
efforts on renewing leases on expiring space. Wdrtathnot our rental revenue tracks average ocaypairoportionally depends upon whet
rents under new leases signed are higher or Idvaerthe rents under the previous leases.

Our expenses primarily consist of rental propentpemses, depreciation and amortization, general agministrative expenses ¢
interest expense. Rental property expenses areggp@ssociated with our ownership and operatioargél properties and include expetr
that vary somewhat, such as common area mainteramtatilities, and relatively fixed expenses, saslproperty taxes and insurance. S
of these variable expenses may be lower when anage occupancy declines. Depreciation and amboiizes a noneash expense associe
with the ownership of real property and generadijnains relatively consistent each year, unlesswyeob sell assets, since we depreciate
properties on a straiglitie basis over fixed lives. General and admintsteaexpenses, net of amounts capitalized, comsistarily of
management and employee salaries and other petsmmstg, corporate and division overhead and kemg incentive compensation. Intel
expense depends primarily upon the amount of owoimngs, the weighted average interest rates andebt and the amount of inter
capitalized on development projects.

We record in “equity in earnings of unconsolidattlliates” our proportionate share of net income or loss, sdfli for purchas
accounting effects, of our unconsolidated jointtuess.

Additionally, SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assetggquires us to record net inco
received from properties sold or held for sale thahlify as discontinued operations under SFAS N#&! separately asiricome fron
discontinued operationsAs a result, we separately record revenues ancheggdrom these qualifying properties. As also ireguby SFA!
No. 144, prior period results are reclassifiedetitect the operations for such properties in disicoied operations

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We incur capital expenditures to lease space tocastomers and to maintain the quality of our proge to successfully comps
against other properties. Tenant improvements legecosts required to customize the space for tkeifép needs of the customer. Le
commissions are costs incurred to find the custdiorethe space. Lease incentives are costs paid em behalf of tenants to induce ther
enter into leases and that do not relate to cugiomithe space for the tenampecific needs. Building improvements are rengrdapita
costs not related to a customer to maintain thielimgis. As leases expire, we either attempt tat thle space to an existing customer or at
a new customer to occupy the space. Generallypmugstrenewals require lower leasing capital exgenes than reletting to new custom
However, market conditions such as supply of akglapace in the market, as well as demand foresghive not only customer rental re
but also tenant improvement costs. Leasing capitpenditures are amortized over the term of theeleend building improvements
depreciated over the appropriate useful life ofabgets acquired. Both are included in depreciatimhamortization in results of operations.
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Because we are a REIT, we are required under therdetax laws to distribute at least 90% of oud RExable income, excludil
capital gains, to our stockholders. We generally tents received from customers and proceeds fedes ®f noncore development land
fund our operating expenses, recurring capital edjperes and stockholder dividends. To fund prgpadquisitions, development activity
building renovations, we may sell other assetsrang incur debt from time to time. Our debt gengrabnsists of mortgage debt, unseci
debt securities and borrowings under our revolareglit facility.

As of December 31, 2006 and May 1, 2007, we hadcxppately $113 million and $417 million, respeety, of additional combine
borrowing availability under our unsecured revolyredit facility and under our secured revolvimgstruction credit facility.

Our revolving credit facility and the indenture goring our outstanding longrm unsecured debt securities require us to gatafious
operating and financial covenants and performaaties. As a result, to ensure that we do not véolaé provisions of these debt instrume
we may from time to time be limited in undertakiogrtain activities that may otherwise be in thet litgrest of our stockholders, suct
repurchasing capital stock, acquiring additionaless, increasing the total amount of our debt oreising stockholder dividends. We rev
our current and expected operating results, firdrogindition and planned strategic actions on ajoory basis for the purpose of monitot
our continued compliance with these covenants atids. Any unwaived event of default could resnlaih acceleration of some or all of
debt, severely restrict our ability to incur adaital debt to fund short- and long-term cash needsswilt in higher interest expense.

To generate additional capital to fund our growtld ather strategic initiatives and to lessen theenship risks typically associated v
owning 100.0% of a property, we may sell some af moperties or contribute them to joint ventunden we create a joint venture wit
strategic partner, we usually contribute one orermoperties that we own and/or vacant land tovayneormed entity in which we retain
interest of 50.0% or less. In exchange for our Equaninority interest in the joint venture, we geally receive cash from the partner
retain some or all of the management income rejattinthe properties in the joint venture. The joiehture itself will frequently borro
money on its own behalf to finance the acquisitibnand/or leverage the return upon, the propeli@sg acquired by the joint venture o
build or acquire additional buildings. Such borrogs are typically on a narecourse or limited recourse basis. We generadiynat liable fo
the debts of our joint ventures, except to the rexdé our equity investment, unless we have diyegtlaranteed any of that debt. In most c:
we and/or our strategic partners are required svaguee customary exceptions to non-recourseitiabil non+ecourse loans. See Note 1
the Consolidated Financial Statements for additioriarmation on certain debt guarantees. We hasmhically also sold additional Comm
Stock or Preferred Stock or issued Common Unifsitd additional growth or to reduce our debt, betlave limited those efforts since 1
because funds generated from our capital recy@iogram in recent years have provided sufficiemidfito satisfy our liquidity needs.
addition, we have recently used funds from ourtehpécycling program to redeem Common Units arefdéPred Stock for cash.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In accordance with SFAS No. 144 and as describedoite 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsyeelassified the operatic
and/or gain/(loss) from disposal of certain projsrto discontinued operations for all periods enésd if the operations and cash flows |
been or will be eliminated from our ongoing oparas and we will not have any significant continuingolvement in the operations after
disposal transaction and the properties were egbler during 2006 and the first three months of260were held for sale at March 31, 2(
There were no properties sold during 2006 anditeethree months of 2007 that did not meet thedd@mns as stipulated by SFAS No. 144.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2007 and 2006

The following table sets forth information regamgliour unaudited results of operations for the thmemths ended March 31, 2007
2006 ($ in millions):

Three Months Ended

March 31, 2007 to 2006
2007 2006 $ Change % of Change
Rental and other revenues $ 108.7 $ 101.1$ 7.€ 7.5%
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expen 39.1 36.1 3.C 8.3
Depreciation and amortizatic 29.7 27.€ 2.1 7.€
General and administrative 10.€ 8.7 2.2 25.%
Total operating expenses 79.7 72.4 7.3 10.1
Interest expenses
Contractua 22.i 23.¢ (1.7 (4.6)
Amortization of deferred financing cos 0.€ 0.8 (0.2) (25.0
Financing obligations 1.C 0.9 0.1 11.1
24.: 25.t (1.2 4.7
Other income:
Interest and other income 1.5 1.6 (0.4) (21.1)
1kt 1.6 (0.9 (21.7)
Income before disposition of property, insurance ga, minority interest and
equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 6.2 5.1 11 21.€
Gains on disposition of property, r 16.7 4.3 12.¢ 288.¢
Gain from property insurance settlem 41 - 41 100.(
Minority interest (2.€) (0.5 (2.7 (420.0
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 9.7 2.1 7.€ 361.¢
Income from continuing operations 34.1 11.C 23.1 210.C
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations, net of miryoiriteresi 0.1 1.4 (1.9 (92.9
Gains on sales of discontinued operations, netinbrity interest 18.2 1.7 16.€ 976.5
18.¢ 3.1 15.: 493.t
Net income 52.t 14.1 38.¢ 2722
Dividends on Preferred Sto 4.7 4.7 0.€ 12.¢
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption cost oveyicayvalue - (1.9) 1.6 100.(
Net income available for common stockholders $ 48.L % 7€% 40.€ 536.€0

Rental and Other Revenues

The increase in rental and other revenues fromiraging operations was primarily the result of higlawerage occupancy in 2007
compared to 2006, the contribution from developexberties placed in service in 2006 and
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the first three months of 2007 and higher escalaticome in 2007 as a result of the increase imatjpey expenses for the same period. T
increases were partly offset by an approximate $0l&n decrease in lease termination fees frord@ 2007.

Rental Property and Other Expenses

Rental and other operating expenses from continapegations (real estate taxes, utilities, insuganepairs and maintenance and ¢
propertyrelated expenses) increased $3.0 million in thet fjuarter of 2007 compared to the first quarte@d6, primarily as a result
general inflationary increases in certain operatmgenses, such as utility costs, insurance coslsreal estate taxes. In addition, re
property and operating expenses of developed piepalaced in service in 2006 and the three moattted March 31, 2007 contributec
the increase in the first quarter of 2007.

Rental revenues less rental and other operatingnesgs increased in 2007 compared to 2006. Howaltleough we recover a portion
operating costs from our tenants, which recoveatiesincluded in rental revenues, the increase @rasjmg costs in 2007 was proportiona
higher than the increase in revenue, resultingshgt reduction in the percentage of rental rexnless rental and other operating expe
to rental revenues compared to 2006.

The increase in depreciation and amortization imgrily a result of the contribution from developmigroperties placed in service
2006 and the three months ended March 31, 2007aandcrease in building improvements, tenant impneents and deferred leasing ¢
related to those buildings placed in service.

The $2.2 million increase in general and administeaexpenses was primarily related to higher gadad fringe benefit costs, includi
stockbased compensation and employer taxes related¢k eptions exercised in the first quarter, highedit fees and higher costs writ
off in 2007 related to the termination of certagvdlopment projects.

I nterest Expense

The decrease in contractual interest was primaltly to a slight decrease in weighted average stteates on outstanding debt fr
6.9% in the three months ended March 31, 2006 8¥%6in the three months ended March 31, 2007 anthemrease of $1.5 million
capitalized interest from the three months endedca1, 2006 to the three months ended March 317 2lie to our increased developn
activity. Partly offsetting these decreases wagarease in average borrowings from $1.42 billioriHe three months ended March 31, 2
to $1.45 billion in the three months ended MarchZI07.

Gains on Disposition of Property; Gain from Property Insurance Settlement; Minority Interest; Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated
Affiliates

Net gains on dispositions of properties not cléadifas discontinued operations were $16.7 millianthe three months enc
March 31, 2007 compared to $4.3 million for theethmonths ended March 31, 2006. Gains are dependethie specific assets sold, tl
historical cost basis arather factors, and can vary significantly from pdrto period. See Note 4 to the Consolidated Fiaha&tatements fi
further discussion.

In the first quarter of 2007, we recorded a $4.llioni gain from finalization of a prior year insuree claim.

The increase in minority interest expense of $2illiam was primarily due to a corresponding increas the Operating Partnershep’
income from continuing operations, after Prefefdent distributions.

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliatesrgwsed $7.6 million from 2006. The increase wasarily a result of the sale of fi
properties by our DLF | joint venture, pursuantvthich the joint venture recognized a gain of apprately $9.3 million, resulting in ¢
increase of approximately $2.1 in equity in earmird unconsolidated affiliates in 2007. Additiogalin 2007, DLF | received a lee
termination fee of $4.6 million, which resulted @am increase of approximately $1.0 in equity in @&ys of unconsolidated affiliates.
addition, in 2007, the Weston Lakeside joint veatsmld 332 rental residential units, recognizirggain of approximately $11.3 million, whi
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resulted in a increase of approximately $5.0 millio equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilmtéSee Note 2 to the Consolidated Final
Statements for further discussion related to tlesesactions).

Discontinued Operations

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, we classifiedinedme of $18.4 million and $3.1 million, net of mority interest, as discontinu
operations for the three months ended March 317 20@ 2006, respectively. These amounts relate3anBlion square feet of office a
industrial property and 173 rental residential sisiold during 2006 and the first quarter of 2007ese amounts include net gains on the
of these properties of $18.3 million and $1.7 roilli net of minority interest, in the three monthwled March 31, 2007 and 20
respectively.
Preferred Dividends and Excess of Preferred Stock Redemption Costsin Excess of Carrying Value

Preferred dividends and excess of preferred stedemption costs decreased $0.6 million due to ametion of $50 million ¢
Preferred Stock in the first quarter of 2006.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Statement of Cash Flows

As required by GAAP, we report and analyze our déshs based on operating activities, investingwitiés and financing activitie
The following table sets forth the changes in @astcflows in the first three months of 2007 as carag to the first three months of 200€
thousands):

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006 Change
Cash Provided By Operating Activities $ 25,74 % 39,88( $ (14,13¢)
Cash Provided By Investing Activitit 11,147 125,69¢ (114,557
Cash Used In Financing Activities (36,577 (142,64) 106,07(
Total Cash Flows $ 314 $ 22,93: $  (22,61%

In calculating cash flow from operating activitiefepreciation and amortization, which are mash expenses, are added back t
income. As a result, we have historically generateifnificant positive amount of cash from op&mtactivities. From period to period, ¢
flow from operations depends primarily upon charigesur net income, as discussed more fully abadeu“Results of Operationsghange
in receivables and payables, and net additionsoredses in our overall portfolio, which affect Hraount of depreciation and amortiza
expense.

Cash provided by or used in investing activitiemegally relates to capitalized costs incurred feasing and major buildil
improvements and our acquisition, development,adigipn and joint venture activity. During periods$ significant net acquisition and.
development activity, our cash used in such inmgséctivities will generally exceed cash provideditwesting activities, which typical
consists of cash received upon the sale of pragseaind distributions of capital from our joint wenes.

Cash used in financing activities generally reldatestockholder dividends, distributions on Comntnits, incurrence and repaymen
debt and sales, repurchases or redemptions of CanBtack, Common Units and Preferred Stock. As dised previously, we use
significant amount of our cash to fund stockholdaridends and Common Unit distributions. Whethernot we have increases in
outstanding balances of debt during a period depgraherally upon the net effect of our acquisitidisposition, development and jc
venture activity. We use our revolving credit fagilfor working capital purposes, which means thating any given period, in order
minimize interest expense, we will likely recordrsificant repayments and borrowings under our naugl credit facility.

The decrease of $14.1 million in cash provided pgrating activities in the three months ended M&th2007 compared to the s
period in 2006 was primarily the result of loweskdlows from net income as adjusted for changegains on disposition of properties
gain from a property insurance settlement, mindritgrest, and equity in earnings of unconsolidat#iiates. In addition, the net change
operating assets and liabilities resulted in a4bllion decrease in cash provided by operatirtyiies from 2006 to 2007.

The decrease of $114.6 million in cash providednyesting activities in the three months ended Ma&t, 2007 compared to the s¢
period in 2006 was primarily a result of a $93.Tion decrease in proceeds from dispositions of estate assets and a $31.5 million incr
in additions to real estate assets and deferresinigaosts. Partly offsetting these decreases sh gaovided was $4.9 million received
proceeds from an insurance settlement in thediratter of 2007.

The decrease of $106.1 million in cash used innfiiveg activities in the three months ended March28D7 compared to the sa
period in 2006 was primarily a result of an $83.ifliom increase in net borrowings on the revolviogdit facility and mortgages and nc
payable, and a decrease of $50.0 million cash imsednnection with the redemption of Preferred 8ttsom 2006 to 2007. These decre:
were partly offset by an increase of $25.9 milliorrash used in connection with the repurchaseoofit@on Units from 2006 to 2007.
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In 2007, we continued our capital recycling prografvselectively disposing of notere properties in order to use the net proceex
investments or other purposes. At March 31, 2009 ,had 33.1 acres of land classified as held far pafsuant to SFAS No. 144 witl
carrying value of $5.5 million.

Capitalization

The following table sets forth our capitalizationaf March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 (in thiods, except per share amounts):

March 31, December 31,
2007 2006
Mortgages and notes payable, at recorded book value $ 1,487,500 $ 1,465,12!
Financing obligation $ 35,52¢ $ 35,53(
Preferred Stock, at liquidation val $ 197,44! % 197,44!
Common Stock and Common Units outstanc 60,82¢ 60,94«
Per share stock price at peri $ 39.4¢ % 40.7¢
Market value of Common Stock and Common Units 2,402,01! 2,484,07
Total market capitalization with debt and obligago $ 4,12250. $ 4,182,18:

Based on our total market capitalization of appraately $4.1 billion at March 31, 2007 (at the MaB8dh 2007 per share stock price
$39.49 and assuming the redemption for shares ofin@mn Stock of the 4.1 million Common Units not odngy the Company), o
mortgages and notes payable represented approkm3étd% of our total market capitalization.

Mortgages and notes payable at March 31, 2007 eapiised of $676 million of secured indebtednegh wiweighted average inter
rate of 6.63% and $812 million of unsecured indébéss with a weighted average interest rate of%.5%s of March 31, 2007, o
outstanding mortgages and notes payable were sebyreeal estate assets with an aggregate undafeeddiook value of approximately $
billion.

We do not intend to reserve funds to retire exgsiacured or unsecured debt upon maturity. Forra camplete discussion of our long-
term liquidity needs, see “Liquidity and Capitald®erces - Current and Future Cash Needs.”
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Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth a summary regarding known contractual obligations, including regdirinterest payments for the
items that are interest bearing, at December 316 28 in thousands):

Amounts due during years ending December 31,

Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter
Mortgages and Notes Payable)
Principal payment $1,465,12° $ 86,70¢ $ 110,34: $ 564,65¢$ 9,057 $ 9,811 $ 684,55
Interest paymeni(2) 461,17¢ 93,50: 85,90¢ 66,04¢ 46,59¢ 45,84t 123,27¢
Financing Obligations:
SF-HIW Harborview Plaza, LP financing
obligation(3) (9) 20,00¢ — — — — — 20,00¢
Tax Increment Financing obligatis) (9) 28,36 2,18: 2,182 2,18: 2,182 2,18: 17,45t
Capitalized ground lease obligati(9) 2,00: 52 52 52 52 52 1,74:%
Capitalized lease obligationgs) 481 252 18¢ 41 — — —
Purchase Obligations:
Completion contract(10) 133,86: 104,90: 28,96( — — — —
Operating Lease Obligations:
Land lease(s) 51,19: 1,06: 1,07¢ 1,11¢ 1,137 1,157 45,63¢
Other Long Term Liabilities Reflected on the
Balance Sheet:
Plaza Colonnade lease guarar(s) 37 — — 37 — — —
Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32 LP lease
guarantes) 41¢ — 41¢ — — — —
RRHWoods and Dallas County Partners lease
guarantes) 49 — — — — — 49
RRHWoods, LLC(s) 28 — — 28 — — —
Industrial environmental guarant(s) 12¢E — — — — — 12t
Eastshore lease guaran(7) 4,08 4,084 — — — — —
DLF payables) 3,551 52¢€ 53¢ 54¢ 55€ 567 82C
KC Orlando, LLC lease guarants) 42C 97 97 97 97 32 —
KC Orlando, LLC accrued lease commissi
tenant improvements and building
improvementgs) 35¢€ — — — — — 35¢€
RRHWoods, LLCs) 402 — — — 403 — —
Total (11) $ 217168 $ 293,37( $ 229,76. $ 634,80. $ 60,080 $ 59,64¢ $ 894,02

(1) See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Stateniemsr 2006 Annual Report on Form KOfor further discussion. In addition, see N
5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements foh&rrtiscussion on the $400 million aggregate ppalanotes sold in 200°

(2) These amounts represent interest payments due dgage and notes payable, based on the statedfoatibe fixed rate debt and on
December 31, 2006 rates for the variable rate déi#.weighted average interest rate on the variaitedebt as of December 31, 2
was 6.15%

(3) This liability represents a financing obligation @ar joint venture partner as a result of accounfior this transaction as a financ
arrangement. See Note 3 to the Consolidated FiaB8tatements in our 2006 Annual Report on For-K for further discussior

(4) In connection with tax increment financing for ctastion of a public garage related to an officéldng constructed by us, we
obligated to pay fixed special assessments ov@-yaear period. The net present value of these assetsndiscounted at 6.93%, wh
represents the interest rate of the underlying bamdhown as a financing obligation in the Cordatitd Balance Sheet in our 2
Annual Report on Form 1R: We also receive special tax revenues and prgpaxtrebates recorded in interest and other incevnieh
are intended, but not guaranteed, to provide fiogsy the special assessme

(5) Included in accounts payable, accrued expensestard liabilities in our 2006 Annual Report on Fotg-K.
(6) See Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Stategrierdur 2006 Annual Report on Form-K for further discussior
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(7) This represents our maximum exposure to continigsstunder our Eastshore guarantee. See Notes Boaindhe Consolidated Financ
Statements in our 2006 Annual Report on Fori-K for further discussior

(8) Represents a fixed obligation we owe our partnedigthwoods DLF 98/29, LP. This obligation arosenfran excess contribution frc
our partner at the formation of the joint ventuaied the net present value of the fixed obligatisecalinted at 9.62% which represents
interest rate derived from the agreement, is rembid other liabilities. See Note 2 to the Consatlkdl Financial Statements in our 2
Annual Report on Form -K for further discussior

(9) Interest components of the contractual obligatiaresbased on the stated fixed rates in the insmtsn€or floating rate debt, interes
computed using the current rate in effect at Deearth, 2006

(10)This amount represents our estimate of contractiadations as of December 31, 2006 related toouarconstruction project

(11)In connection with the adoption of FIN 48, on Jagub 2007, we recorded a $1.4 million liabilityr foncertain tax positions. We beli¢
that this liability will be reversed in the next ironths due to the expiration of the applicabléustaof limitations, and therefore, have
included it in the Contractual Obligations tabl@ad. See Note 12 to the Consolidated Financiak8tants for further discussic

Preferred Stock Redemptions

On April 27, 2007, we announced that we will redee@m May 29, 2007, 1.6 million of our outstandingriés B Preferred Shar
aggregating $40.0 million plus accrued and unpaidlends. In connection with this redemption, theess of the redemption cost over
net carrying amount of the redeemed shares is astdrto be $1.4 million and will be recorded a®duction to net income available
common stockholders in the second quarter of 2007.

Debt Financing Activity

Our $450 million unsecured revolving credit fagilis initially scheduled to mature on May 1, 2088suming no default exists, we hi
an option to extend the maturity date by one aalditi year and, at any time prior to May 1, 2008y mexjuest increases in the borrow
availability under the credit facility by up to aulditional $50 million. The interest rate is LIBQius 80 basis points and the annual
facility fee is 20 basis points.

Our revolving credit facility and the indenture thgoverns our outstanding notes require us to cpmpth customary operatit
covenants and various financial and operating satide are currently in compliance with all suchuiegments. Although we expect to rerr
in compliance with these covenants and ratios foeast the next year, depending upon our futureratmg performance, property ¢
financing transactions and general economic camitiwe cannot assure you that we will continueetin compliance.

If any of our lenders ever accelerated outstandiglgf due to an event of default, we would not He & borrow any further amoul
under our revolving credit facility, which would setsely affect our ability to fund our operatioffsour debt cannot be paid, refinance«
extended at maturity or upon acceleration, in @aidito our failure to repay our debt, we may noeb& to make distributions to stockholc
at expected levels or at all. Furthermore, if afjnancing is done at higher interest rates, teecimsed interest expense would adversely i
our cash flows and ability to make distributionsstockholders. Any such refinancing could also isgdtighter financial ratios and ot
covenants that would restrict our ability to takdi@ns that would otherwise be in our stockholddosst interest, such as funding t
development activity, making opportunistic acquusis, repurchasing our securities or paying diatidms.

On March 22, 2007, the Operating Partnership sé@D$nillion aggregate principal amount of 5.85% @¢otlue March 15, 2017, ne
original issue discount of $1.2 million. The noteere issued under the indenture, dated as of Dezeinli996, among us, the Opera
Partnership and U.S. Bank National Associations(asessor in interest to Wachovia Bank, N.A.),tthstee, and pursuant to resolution
our Board of Directors and an officersértificate dated as of March 22, 2007 establishirgterms of the notes. We used the net pro
from the sale of the notes to repay borrowings tanting under an unsecured n@wolving credit facility that was obtained
January 31, 2007 (which was subsequently termihaded under the revolving credit facility. In cowltien with the completion of tl
offering, we and the Operating Partnership entaraxla registration rights agreement dated March2PR7 with the initial purchasers of
notes. The registration rights agreement requivesperating Partnership to file, within 90 dayterathe closing date of the sale of the nt
a registration statement with respect to an offezxchange the notes for other freely tradableshtat are registered under the Securitie:
of 1933
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and to cause such exchange offer registrationnstateto become effective within 180 days afterdlosing date. The Operating Partnersh
required to complete the exchange offer within 8a@s after the closing date. If the Operating Rastnip fails to comply with the provisic
of the registration rights agreement, the interat& will be increased by 0.25% per annum durirgiBday period immediately following tl
default and will increase by 0.25% per annum atethé of each subsequent 88y period, but in no event shall such increaseex®.509
per annum. Management currently believes that viletimiely fulfill our obligations under the registtion rights agreement and, accordin
no amounts have been recorded for potential fudditional interest costs.

During the first quarter of 2007, we also paid $&6 million, excluding any normal debt amortizatiof secured debt with a weigh
average interest rate of 8.16%. Approximately $t6llion of real estate assets (based on undepegtiedst basis) became unencumb
after paying off the secured debt.

Current and Future Cash Needs

Rental and other revenues are our principal soafdends to meet our shotérm liquidity requirements, which primarily corsis
operating expenses, debt service, stockholder elindd, any guarantee obligations and recurring aa@ipenditures. In addition, we co
incur tenant improvement costs and lease commissilated to any releasing of vacant space.

As of May 1, 2007, other than principal amortizatimn certain secured loans, we have no outstamibgthat matures prior to the ¢
of 2007. We expect to fund our sheetm liquidity needs through a combination of aablé working capital, cash flows from operationd
the following:

o the selective disposition of non-core land and #ssets;

« borrowings under our revolving credit facility (vehi has up to $366.9 million of availability in thggregate as of May 1, 20
and under our existing $50.0 million secured revm\construction loan (which has $50.0 million dable at May 1, 2007

o the sale or contribution of some of our Wholly Owneroperties, development projects and developitagik to strategic joil
ventures to be formed with unrelated investorscivhlwould have the net effect of generating additiaapital through such sale
contributions;

e the issuance of secured debt; and
o the issuance of unsecured debt.

Our longterm liquidity needs generally include the fundisfgcapital expenditures to lease space to our mest®, maintain the qual
of our existing properties and build new properti@apital expenditures include tenant improvemdmtdding improvements, new buildi
completion costs and land infrastructure costs.afemmprovements are the costs required to custspace for the specific needs of first-
generation and secomgneration customers. Building improvements arerrety capital costs not related to a specific costr to maintai
existing buildings. New building completion costse axpenses for the construction of new buildihgsd infrastructure costs are expenst
prepare development land for future developmenitctthat is not specifically related to a sindbilding. Excluding recurring capit
expenditures for leasing costs and tenant improwsnand for normal building improvements, our expdduture capital expenditures
started and/or committed new development projeesevapproximately $221 million at May 1, 2007. Ayrsficant portion of these futu
expenditures are currently subject to binding cettral arrangements.

Our longterm liquidity needs also include the funding ofvelepment projects, selective asset acquisitiorns the retirement «
mortgage debt, amounts outstanding under our rengleredit facility and longerm unsecured debt. Our goal is to maintain a e&masive
and flexible balance sheet. Accordingly, we exgecineet our londerm liquidity needs through a combination of (i issuance by t
Operating Partnership of additional unsecured dauurities, (2) the issuance of additional equigusities by the Company and
Operating Partnership, (3) borrowings under otkeeus=d construction loans that we may enter irdayell as (4) the sources described al
with respect to our short-term liquidity. We expéatuse such sources to meet our losga liquidity requirements either through dii
payments or repayments of borrowings under ourlvawgp credit facility. As mentioned
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above, we do not intend to reserve funds to retisting secured or unsecured indebtedness upanritgatnstead, we will seek to refinar
such debt at maturity or retire such debt throdghissuance of equity or debt securities or frooteeds from sales of properties.

We anticipate that our available cash and cashvalgrits and cash flows from operating activitieghwash available from borrowin
and other sources, will be adequate to meet outatamd liquidity needs in both the short and Iaegn. However, if these sources of fu
are insufficient or unavailable, our ability to pdiyidends to stockholders and satisfy other caghents may be adversely affected.

Stockholder Dividends

To maintain our qualification as a REIT, we mustdbute to stockholders at least 90% of our REXable income, excluding cap
gains. REIT taxable income, the calculation of \khis determined by the federal tax laws, does gotknet income under GAAP. \
generally expect to use our cash flow from opega#iativities for dividends to stockholders and fayment of recurring capital expenditu
Future dividends will be made at the discretioroof Board of Directors. The following factors wdffect our cash flows and, accordiny
influence decisions of the Board of Directors relyag dividends:

o debt service requirements after taking into accaebt covenants and the repayment and restructafiogrtain indebtedness;
e Scheduled increases in base rents of existingdease

e changes in rents attributable to renewal of exgskases or replacement leases;

e Changes in occupancy rates at existing propertidse&ecution of leases for newly acquired or dgwetioproperties;

e Operating expenses and capital replacement newrtdisding tenant improvements and leasing costs; and

o sales of properties and non-core land.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have several off balance sheet joint venturecaradtantee arrangements. The joint ventures weneefb with unrelated investors
generate additional capital to fund property adtjaiss, repay outstanding debt or fund other sgiaténitiatives and to lessen the ri
typically associated with owning 100.0% of a prapewWhen we create a joint venture with a stratgmcner, we usually contribute one
more properties that we own to a newly formed gntitwhich we retain an equal or minority interdst.exchange for an equal or mino
interest in the joint venture, we generally recatash from the partner and frequently retain theagament income relating to the prope
in the joint venture. For financial reporting puses, certain assets we sold have been accountad forancing arrangements. See Notes
and 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As of March 31, 2007, our unconsolidated joint vees had $742.3 million of total assets and $56iilion of total liabilities a
reflected in their financial statements. At March 3007, our weighted average equity interest basettie total assets of these unconsolic
joint ventures was 40.1%. During the three montided March 31, 2007, these unconsolidated jointwen earned $27.6 million of total
income of which our share, after appropriate pusehaccounting and other adjustments, was $9.7omilfror additional information abc
our unconsolidated joint venture activity, see Nbte the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As of March 31, 2007, our unconsolidated joint vees had $537.5 million of outstanding mortgaget.déb of this joint venture debt
non+ecourse to us except (1) in the case of customergptions pertaining to such matters as misusenals, environmental conditions ¢
material misrepresentations and (2) those guarsuztee loans described in Note 11 to the ConsolidBieancial Statements. The follow
table sets forth the scheduled maturities of owpertionate share of the outstanding debt of ouwongolidated joint ventures as
March 31, 2007 ($ in thousands):
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Remainder of 200 $ 2,812

2008 4,66¢
2009 8,271
2010 10,99:
2011 6,03%
Thereafter 197,41:

$ 230,18¢

For information regarding our off-balance sheeamagements as of December 31, 2006, see “Managesigistussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operations —RBxfance Sheet Arrangements” in our 2006 AnnualoRegn Form 10-K.

Financing Arrangements

For information regarding significant sales trarigacs that were accounted for as financing arrareggsnat December 31, 2006,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations — Financing Brafit-Sharing Arrangementsi
our 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Interest Rate Hedging Activities

To meet, in part, our longerm liquidity requirements, we borrow funds atanbination of fixed and variable rates. Borrowingsle
our revolving credit facility bear interest at \able rates. Our long-term debt, which consistsesfised and unsecured loterm financing
and the issuance of unsecured debt securitiesalfypibears interest at fixed rates although sooamd bear interest at variable rates.
interest rate risk management objectives are td tine impact of interest rate changes on earnamgs cash flows and to lower our ove
borrowing costs. To achieve these objectives, ftiom to time, we may enter into interest rate hettg@racts such as collars, swaps, cap:
treasury lock agreements in order to mitigate oterest rate risk with respect to various debtrimsents. We do not hold or issue tt
derivative contracts for trading or speculativeguses. The interest rate on all of our variable dbt is adjusted at one and three
intervals, subject to settlements under interest h@dge contracts. We also enter into treasuty dgceements from time to time in orde
limit our exposure to an increase in interest ratgh respect to future debt offerings. We currgiithve no outstanding interest rate he
contracts.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

There were no changes to the critical accountirigipe made by management in the three months ekdedh 31, 2007, except as
forth in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Stagats under “Impact of Newly Adopted and IssueddArting Standardsdnd in Note 1:
For a description of our critical accounting estiesa see “ManagemeastDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord d&esults ¢
Operations - Critical Accounting Estimates” in @206 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS

We believe that FFO and FFO per share are beneficimanagement and investors and are importamntatats of the performance
any equity REIT. Because FFO and FFO per sharailatilens exclude such factors as depreciation amortization of real estate assets
gains or losses from sales of operating real esta¢ets (which can vary among owners of identisaéts in similar conditions based
historical cost accounting and useful life estiraptéhey facilitate comparisons of operating perfance between periods and between
REITs. Our management believes that historical assbunting for real estate assets in accordantte ®@AAP implicitly assumes that t
value of real estate assets diminishes predictabdy time. Since real estate values have histdyicelen or fallen with market conditior
many industry investors and analysts have congidére presentation of operating results for retdtescompanies that use historical
accounting to be insufficient by itself. As a reasmhanagement believes that the use of FFO and pdfGhare, together with the requ
GAAP presentations, provide a more complete unaleditg of our performance relative to our compeditand a more informed a
appropriate basis on which to make decisions inkgleperating, financing and investing activities.
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FFO and FFO per share as disclosed by other REBysmat be comparable to our calculation of FFO BRE® per share as descril
below. However, you should also be aware that FRORFO per share are n@AAP financial measures and therefore do not represe
income or net income per share as defined by GAXét. income and net income per share as defined AgFGare the most releve
measures in determining our operating performaroadse FFO and FFO per share include adjustmattmtiestors may deem subject
such as adding back expenses such as depreciatibamortization. Furthermore, FFO per share doégepict the amount that accr
directly to the stockholderdienefit. Accordingly, FFO and FFO per share shawdder be considered as alternatives to net incanme
income per share as indicators of our operatinfppaance.

Our calculation of FFO, which we believe is coreistwith the calculation of FFO as defined by traibhal Association of Real Est
Investment Trusts (“NAREIT")and which appropriately excludes the cost of capitpprovements and related capitalized interestas
follows:

o Netincome (loss) computed in accordance with GA
o Less dividends to holders of Preferred Stock ass éxcess of Preferred Stock redemption cost @reying value;
o Plus depreciation and amortization of assets uhjcgignificant to the real estate industry;

o Less gains, or plus losses, from sales of deprieci@terating properties (but excluding impairmersises) and excluding ite
that are classified as extraordinary items undeAB¢

e Plus or minus adjustments for unconsolidated peships and joint ventures (to reflect funds fromexgtions on the sar
basis); anc

e Plus or minus adjustments for depreciation and #ration and gains/(losses) on sales and minoritgrést related
discontinued operation

Further, in calculating FFO, we add back minoritierest in the income from the Operating Partnprshihich we believe is consisti
with standard industry practice for REITs that gperthrough an UPREIT structure. We believe that important to present FFO on an as-
converted basis since all of the Common Units nated by the Company are redeemable on a onerferbasis for shares of our Comr
Stock.

Other REITs may not define FFO in accordance with ¢urrent NAREIT definition or may interpret therent NAREIT definitiol
differently than we do.
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FFO and FFO per share for the three months endedh\&d., 2007 and 2006 are summarized in the foligwable ($ in thousanc

except per share amounts):

Three Months Ended March 31,

2007 2006
Per Per
Amount Share Amount Share
Funds from operations:
Net income $ 52,55¢ $ 14,14¢
Dividends to preferred stockholde (4,117 (4,729
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption cost oveyicayvalue — (1,809
Net income available for common stockhold 48,44 $ 0.8t 7,61¢ $ 0.14
Add/(Deduct):
Depreciation and amortization of real estate a: 29,10« 0.47 26,80¢ 0.44
(Gains) on disposition of depreciable proper (908) (0.07) (1,270 (0.09
Minority interest from the Operating Partnershiprioome from
operations 2,44¢ — 444 —
Unconsolidated affiliates
Depreciation and amortization of real estate a: 2,86¢ 0.04 2,67¢ 0.04
(Gains) on disposition of depreciable proper (7,159 (0.12) — —
Discontinued operation
Depreciation and amortization of real estate a: 5 — 1,10€ 0.0z
(Gains) on disposition of depreciable proper (19,749 (0.329) (1,899 (0.0%)
Minority interest from the Operating Partnershiprinome from discontinued
operations 1,49( — 28C —
Funds from operations $ 56,55( % 091% 3576¢% 0.5¢
Weighted average shares outstanding) 61,90( 60,58¢

(1) Includes assumed conversion of all potentiallytdieiCommon Stock equivalen
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MA RKET RISK

The effects of potential changes in interest ratesdiscussed below. Our market risk discussioludles “forward-looking statements”
and represents an estimate of possible changesrindiue or future earnings that would occur asagnypothetical future movements
interest rates. These disclosures are not preciieators of expected future effects, but only éatlors of reasonably possible effects.
result, actual future results may differ materidigm those presented. See “Managengeitiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condi
and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capitak&urces’and the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemfemta description of ol
accounting policies and other information relatethiese financial instruments.

To meet in part our lonterm liquidity requirements, we borrow funds atoanbination of fixed and variable rates. Borrowingsler ou
revolving credit facility bear interest at variabbges. Our long-term debt, which consists of sedwand unsecured longrm financings ar
the issuance of unsecured debt securities, tygibalrs interest at fixed rates although some Ibaas interest at variable rates. Our inte
rate risk management objectives are to limit thpdot of interest rate changes on earnings andfttagh and to lower our overall borrowi
costs. To achieve these objectives, from timertetive enter into interest rate hedge contracts asdavllars, swaps, caps and treasury
agreements in order to mitigate our interest rigtewith respect to various debt instruments. Wendbhold or issue these derivative contr
for trading or speculative purposes. We had naéstaate hedge contracts in effect at March 30720

As of March 31, 2007, we had $1,411 million of fixeate debt outstanding. The estimated aggregatentaket value of this debt
March 31, 2007 was $1,454 million. If interest sabacrease by 100 basis points, the aggregatenfaiket value of our fixed rate debt a:
March 31, 2007 would decrease by $72.2 millionntérest rates decrease by 100 basis points, tiregate fair market value of our fixed 1
debt as of March 31, 2007 would increase by $78lBm

As of March 31, 2007, we had $76.7 million of vaterate debt outstanding. If the weighted aveiiatgrest rate on this variable r

debt is 100 basis points higher or lower during 1#2emonths ended March 31, 2007, our interest esgoevould increase or decrease
approximately $0.8 million.
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ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

GENERAL

The purpose of this section is to discuss the tffeicess of our disclosure controls and procedaresrecent changes in our intel
control over financial reporting. The statementsthirs section represent the conclusions of Edwaréridsch, our President and Ct
Executive Officer, and Terry L. Stevens, our Vigedtdent and Chief Financial Officer.

The CEO and CFO evaluations of our controls andemares include a review of the controls’ objectivnd design, the controls’
implementation by us and the effect of the contmisthe information generated for use in this QarértReport. We seek to identify d
errors, control problems or acts of fraud and aomfihat appropriate corrective action, includinggess improvements, is undertaken.
controls and procedures are also evaluated ongoiranbasis by or through the following:

e activities undertaken and reports issued by empgloye our internal audit department;

e Quarterly sub-certifications by representativesrfrappropriate business and accounting functiorsupport the CEO’s and CF©’
evaluations of our controls and procedu

o oOther personnel in our finance and accounting drgdion;
e members of our internal disclosure committee; and
e Mmembers of the audit committee of our Board of Ewes.

Our management, including our CEO and CFO, do rpéet that our controls and procedures will prevaherrors and all fraud.
control system, no matter how well conceived andrafed, can provide only reasonable, not absoh#syrance that the objectives of
control system are met. Further, the design ofrot;iand procedures must reflect the fact thatetlaee resource constraints, and the bel
of controls must be considered relative to thestsoBecause of the inherent limitations in alltooinsystems, no evaluation of controls
provide absolute assurance that all control issmb instances of fraud, if any, have been detedkdse inherent limitations include
realities that judgments in decisiomaking can be faulty and that breakdowns can obeagause of a simple error or mistake. Addition
controls can be circumvented by the individual adtsome persons, by collusion of two or more peppt by management override of
control. The design of any system of controls &sased in part upon certain assumptions aboudikidéhood of future events, and there
be no assurance that any design will succeed iieol its stated goals under all potential futcoaditions.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTIN G

In Item 9A of our 2006 Annual Report, our managetreported that the Comparyinternal control over financial reporting was
effective as of December 31, 2006 due to materedkmesses that existed as of such date in the@hteontrol environment associated v
our accounting for real estate assets. As of the dfthis filing, we have developed and implemdnde are in the process of implemen
remediation plans to improve the internal contmlieonment associated with the material weaknetsssexisted as of December 31, 2(
First, we have converted from a supplemestdtware package used to calculate depreciatidhetalepreciation module contained within
general ledger package. This conversion shouldirdita the need to reconcile the supplemental systetfime general ledger and enhance
effectiveness of our fixed asset account reconiglia. Second, we began using our centralized leageoval software to identify a
properly account for all tenant improvements uralexh by tenants. Third, we plan to use our cemgdlinvoice approval software to proc
all invoices related to iprocess building improvements, tenant improvemants new development completion costs and have mgaiée
additional analytical procedures to reasonablyrasthat such costs are identified and properlywagtin our consolidated financial statem
on a timely basis. Fourth, we are developing anglémenting a Compamyide policy and procedures manual for use by ouisitinal ant
accounting staff, intended to reasonably assuresis@mt and appropriate assessment and applicafiaenerally accepting account
principles. Fifth, we are continuing our searchfitba vacant Chief Accounting Officer position. rigie we have not yet completed
evaluated through formal testing all of our planoednplemented remediation
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activities nor have we been required to undertake\aluation of our internal control over financiaporting since December 31, 2006
assurances can be given that the material wealsdssteexisted at December 31, 2006 have beercisulftiy remediated through the proc
discussed above as of the date of this filing. @anagement is working closely with the audit cortemitto monitor our ongoing efforts
improve our internal control over financial repogiand to monitor the ongoing remediation of th@erhentioned material weaknesses.

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

SEC rules also require us to maintain disclosumgrots and procedures that are designed to enbateiriformation required to
disclosed in our annual and periodic reports fikdth the SEC is recorded, processed, summarizedrepaited within the time perio
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. As defimedRule 13a15(e) under the Exchange Act, disclosure contral$ grocedures incluc
without limitation, controls and procedures des@rte ensure that information required to be disslbdy us is accumulated ¢
communicated to our management, including our CROGFO, to allow timely decisions regarding reqdidisclosure. As described abc
since we have not yet completed or evaluated abusf planned remediation activities relating to thaterial weaknesses that existe
December 31, 2006, our CEO and CFO do not belibgae dur disclosure controls and procedures wereciie at the end of the per
covered by this Quarterly Report.
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PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1.LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are from time to time a party to a variety afdeproceedings, claims and assessments arisitig iardinary course of our busine
We regularly assess the liabilities and contingesién connection with these matters based on testlanformation available. For thc
matters where it is probable that we have incumedill incur a loss and the loss or range of loaa be reasonably estimated, reserve
recorded in the Consolidated Financial Stateméntsther instances, because of the uncertaintiasereto both the probable outcome
amount or range of loss, a reasonable estimaiahifity, if any, cannot be made. Based on theenirexpected outcome of such matters,
of these proceedings, claims or assessments ictexp® have a material adverse effect on our kssinfinancial condition or results
operations.

In 2006 and March 2007, we received assessmentgtdta excise taxes and related interest amoutdiggproximately $5.5 milliol
related to periods 2002 through 2005. We beliea¢ we are not subject to such taxes and have vigtralisputed the assessment. Base
the advice of counsel concerning the status ofese#int discussions and on our analysis, we cuyrémetieve it is probable that all excise
assessments, including additional potential assastsnfor 2005 and 2006, can be settled by the patyoferanchise taxes of approximat
$0.5 million, and in the fourth quarter of 2006 lswamount was accrued and charged to operating s&pehegal fees related to this me
were nominal and were charged to operating expeassaxurred in 2006 and 2007.

ITEM 6.EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description

4.1 Form of 5.85% Notes due March 15, 2017 (filed a$ plthe Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K date
March 22, 2007

4.2 Officers’ Certificate Establishing the Terms of tH&5% Notes, dated as of March 22, 2007 (filepaas of the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K dated March 22, 200°

10.1 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Marci2RPR7, by and among the Operating PartnershipCtmepany and
the initial purchasers named therein (filed as pathe Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K dated March 22, 200°

10.2 Executive Supplemental Employment Agreement, daseof April 13, 2007, between the Company and EdwaFritsch
(filed as part of the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K dated April 13, 2007)

10.3 Executive Supplemental Employment Agreement, daseof April 13, 2007, between the Company and Mitka Harris
(filed as part of the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K dated April 13, 2007)

104 Executive Supplemental Employment Agreement, daseof April 13, 2007, between the Company and TerBgevens
(filed as part of the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K dated April 13, 2007)

10.5 Executive Supplemental Employment Agreement, daseaf April 13, 2007, between the Company and Géne
Anderson (filed as part of the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K dated April 13, 2007):

10.6 Executive Supplemental Employment Agreement, dasedf April 13, 2007, between the Company and &gfiy. Miller
(filed as part of the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K dated April 13, 2007)

31.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sael-Oxley Act

31.2 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saek-Oxley Act

32.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saek-Oxley Act

32.2 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saek-Oxley Act

* Compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causidréport to be signed on its bel
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

HIGHWOODSPROPERTIESINC.

By: /s EDWARD J.FRITSCH

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer

By: /s TERRY L. STEVENS
Terry L. Stevens
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Date: May 10, 2007
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